
MEETING: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL

DATE: Friday 12th March, 2021

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: REMOTE MEETING

DECISION MAKER: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
PANEL

Councillor Lappin
Councillor Byrom
Councillor Doyle
Councillor Lynne Thompson

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Jayne Vincent
Consultation, Engagement and 
Performance Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 3840
Fax:
E-mail: Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 
 1.  Welcome and apologies

 2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 
agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 
gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 
interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 
room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 
in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

 3.  Minutes of meeting held on Friday 12th 
February 2021

(Pages 5 - 
10)

 4.  Matters Arising

 5.  LCR - Race Equality Engagement Plan (Pages 11 - 
24)

 6.  Feedback & Evaluation Report - Southport 
Golf Survey

(Pages 25 - 
40)

 7.  Update Report - SEND (Pages 41 - 
98)

 8.  Any Other Business



 9.  Date of next meeting - Friday 28th May 2021, 
10.00 a.m.   Venue to be confirmed - either 
Assembly Hall, Bootle Town Hall with video 
conferencing in Southport Town Hall or 
Remote.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

 

Extra Meeting held on Friday 12th February 2021 
Remote Meeting 

 
 
Present:  
  
Councillor Paulette Lappin (Chair) 
Councillor Leslie Byrom (CBE) 
Councillor Mhairi Doyle (MBE) 
Councillor Lynne Thompson 
Nigel Bellamy – VCF Sector Representative 
Lyn Cooke – Communications & Engagement Manager, South Sefton and Southport 
& Formby CCGs 
Jackie Sutton – Integrated Risk Officer for Merseyside Fire Service 
Joel Thornton – Sefton CVS, Sefton Young Advisors 
Georgia Ribbens – Young Advisor Project Officer for Sefton CVS 
Jayne Vincent - Consultation & Engagement Lead, Sefton MBC 
Julie Tierney, Public Health Lead Substance Use & Sexual Health, Sefton MBC 
Joanne Edgar – Admin Support, Sefton MBC 
 
Apologies: 
Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton 
 
The reports presented to the Public Consultation and Engagement Panel can be 
found here: 
 
https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10341&Ver=4 

 

 

 

Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies 

Apologies:  

Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton 

 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

• No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
personal interests were received. 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15th January 2021 are a 
true and proper record. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10341&Ver=4
https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10341&Ver=4


 

2 
 

 

 

Action 

4. Matters Arising 

Item 6 – SEND Youth Voice.  Maria Simpson and Andy Jennings 
met with Emma Lambert, Sefton CVS to review whether there had 
been any gaps with regards to the current restricted mode of 
consultation. 

Item 7 – Improving Information Group.  Michelle Anglesea and 
Jayne Vincent will be meeting with Democratic Services after half-
term to get advice from Ruth Harrison regarding scheduling an 
Accessible Information briefing for Elected Members.   

Item 5 - Public Engagement and Consultation Panel Annual 
Report 2020.  A workshop is scheduled for 27th March to review 
the Panel standards and membership. 

 

 

5. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation 
Activity – Community Adult Substance Use Treatment and 
Recovery Service 

Julie Tierney presented the proposal for consultation and 
engagement activity with regards to the Community Adult 
Substance Use Treatment and Recovery Service. 

The existing contract for community adult substance use treatment 
and recovery services expires on 31st March 2022. The current 
service is provided by Merseycare. 

The main purpose of the engagement is to inform the service 
specification for commissioning to ensure effective delivery of the 
service in future and to ensure it is meeting the needs of the local 
community. The consultation aims to engage with a range of 
partners and service users including: 

•    Existing service providers 

• Service users 

• Young People & Families Substance Use Service Manager 

• GPs involved in the Treatment Pathway 

• Pharmacists involved in the Treatment Pathway 

Currently due to the Covid pandemic  90% of service users are not 
attending services and the ones that are attending are those most 
at risk. 

The following consultation methods are proposed: 

• Electronic survey to all identified partners, including service 
users 

• Telephone interviews with service users who have 
consented to participate 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

3 
 

 

 

Action 

Only a limited number of service users have email addresses/are 
contacted electronically - the main contact being weekly telephone 
calls.   

Julie reported that twenty-one service users have consented to 
participate in the telephone interviews – noted that this figure may 
increase slightly by the end of the day. 

Although focus groups were previously a means of engagement, 
due to Covid restrictions and very few service users going into the 
centres, telephone interviews have been deemed the most effective 
way to engage.  Julie stated that all feedback will be anonymised. 
She stressed the importance of carrying out the engagement as it 
has been four years since the service went out to tender and they 
need to ensure that all partners are given the opportunity to feed 
into the service specification. 

Nigel Bellamy raised that the  current consultation pool had 
limitations and felt that it was far too narrow.  He referred to an item 
in the current specification regarding optimising treatment and 
recovery outcomes and improving safety of individuals, their 
children and families, and noted that currently there was only one 
contact proposed for children and families.  Nigel suggested 
contacting social care and possibly Early Help and in terms of 
helping into jobs to contact Sefton at Work and Independence 
Initiative.  He also suggested sending the survey out to mental 
health advisors. Nigel felt that the consultation needs to be wider 
via the electronic survey. 

Councillor Doyle stated that she was concerned as there are 3 – 
4,000 people in treatment for drug and alcohol misuse, but it is only 
proposed to talk to twenty-one of them.  She suggested that they 
contact the Salvation Army in Bootle, who still have people going in 
and out daily and could perhaps have some socially distanced face-
to-face sessions.   Councillor Doyle felt that this service group are 
naturally suspicious, and it is important to build up their trust and 
was concerned that by only conducting twenty-one telephone 
interviews,  a lot of voices may not be heard. In addition, she felt 
that it is harder to deal with people with alcohol dependency issues 
as alcohol is perceived as socially acceptable -  it is harder for them 
to recognise they have a problem, to keep them in treatment and 
perhaps the questions need to be different for this group?  

Julie responded that for those drug and alcohol users on the 
system, they will receive a copy of the electronic survey, which will 
be very similar to the telephone survey.  Although only a small 
cohort of service users are attending face-to-face, they will have 
paper copies of the survey available and they hope to at least 
capture that number again. Regarding the wider community, Julie 
felt that the Panel’s comments were interesting in terms of how they 
can engage and has made a list of suggestions and will look at what 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Julie Tierney 

 
Julie Tierney 

 

 

 
Julie Tierney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

4 
 

 

 

Action 

they can do with the electronic survey – possibly sending out to 
partners to see if they will participate.  Julie referred to the GP and 
pharmacist consultation in which they hope to capture a wider view 
of their clients and customers – they have asked about perceptions, 
stigma and how to better promote the services in the community to 
encourage more self-referrals. 

Jayne Vincent commented that going forward with a new or existing 
provider she feels that it is important to build up regular feedback 
and evaluation from service users, to have an ongoing picture of 
their experience so they can make ongoing improvements based 
on feedback.  Though she acknowledged they had some feedback 
from the provider, she said it would help if they had comprehensive 
feedback from the provider. 

Julie responded that the Panel comments were fair.  She described 
the information they currently receive: regular performance reports 
around treatment and outcomes for service users and vignettes 
regarding case studies. They have reviewed complements and any 
complaints and performance is very satisfactory. Merseycare 
capture information for all the services that have asked them for 
access and this information will be available as part of the review. 

Lyn Cooke was in agreement with Councillor Doyle and Nigel 
Bellamy regarding the scope of the engagement and groups.  
Thinking in terms of the GP questionnaire, Lyn felt it might be 
challenging to get feedback from this group due to the pressure 
primary care is currently under from Covid and the vaccination 
programme.  She suggested attending their existing meetings for 
feedback.  

Councillor Doyle raised that she is on the Board of Bosco House in 
Bootle and New Start who run hostels in Southport.  These hostels 
have a lot of drug and alcohol users passing through and the 
organisations also have supported housing accommodation. 
Councillor Doyle suggested working with care workers within these 
settings and asking them to complete the forms, as they know the 
people and this in turn would widen up the consultation. 

Nigel Bellamy said that he was in agreement with Councillor Doyle 
regarding this point.  Nigel raised the lack of a steering group to 
bring people together.  He recounted that in the past there used to 
be an alcohol group and also a similar one for drugs and suggested 
that Public Health should look to establish one again as this would 
help to focus attention with a lot of agencies interfacing. 

Julie responded that she only joined Sefton a few months ago and 
is not aware of the history.  She is going to speak to the previous 
post holder regarding this.  Nigel responded that he was happy to 
talk with Julie off-line regarding this. 

Julie Tierney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Julie Tierney 

 

 

 

Julie Tierney 

 

 

 
 

Julie Tierney 

 

Julie Tierney 
Nigel Bellamy 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 

5 
 

 

 

Action 

Councillor Lappin thanked Julie and the group.  She thought the 
discussion was very useful and asked Julie to come back to the 
Panel with feedback. 

 
Julie Tierney 

7. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement Activity – 
Shaping Care Together – moved to Item 8 

 

12. Any other Business 

There was no other business. 

 

 

13. Date and time of next Meeting 
 
Friday 12th March 2021, 10.00 a.m. – remote meeting  

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Race Equality Programme

Agenda Item 5

1

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



Background and Context

Race Equality Programme

What is to be done?

LRCA Race Equality Programme Agenda Item 5

2

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 5



Global Pandemic and disproportionate impact on BAME communities 

25th May killing of George Floyd – new impetus to Black Lives Matter 

Since Equalities Act 2010 race equality has fallen down the list of 

organisational priorities 

Race equality activity reactive (1981, 1985, 1999 Macpherson)

Current window of opportunity has to be maximised

Background and Context Agenda Item 5

3

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item 5

4

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 5



It’s important we represent the people we serve

934

22,028

22

540

2.3%

2.4%

LC R  B A M E  

P O P U L AT I O N

=  6 %  
( 9 3 k  p e o p l e )

T o t a l  

E m p l o y e e s

%  o f  

W o r k f o r c e

B l a c k ,  A s i a n  &  

M i n o r i t y  E t h n i c

E m p l o y e e s

L C R C A

L C R  L A ’ s

L I V E R P O O L  =  1 2 %

Agenda Item 5

5

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5



The Opportunity

Racial inequality is leading 
to lower life satisfaction & 
disadvantage – it’s holding 
our City Region back

Companies with 
more culturally and 
ethnically diverse 
teams are 33% more 
likely to see better-
than-average profits

Closing the employment and pay gap in the Liverpool 
City Region would add £300m to our economy each 
year 

I t ’ s  g o o d  f o r  b u s i n e s s

I t ’ s  g o o d  f o r  p e o p l e

I t ’ s  g o o d  f o r  t h e  e c o n o m y

Agenda Item 5

6

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 5



Through our Race Equality Programme the 

organisation will own and maintain the vision 

for the strategy that will:  

“Tackle systemic injustice and inequality and 

drive forward positive change for our Black, 

Asian and Minority Ethnic employees and 

residents - influencing the partners we work 
with to do the same”

Programme Vision Agenda Item 5

7

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 5



Areas of work

CA AS COMMISSIONER

CA AS FACILITATOR

• Develop a diverse, representative workforce that promotes opportunity for underrepresented employees
• Increase the number of BAME staff in senior positions
• Embed equality and diversity as an integral part of the ethos and culture of the organisation

• Improve the accessibility and take up of CA-funded programmes across BAME residents
• Embed consideration of race equality in all policies, programmes and interventions
• Deliver policy, programmes and interventions that effectively narrow gaps between BAME and white

residents

• Listen to and amplify the voice of our BAME communities
• Increase the number of organisations across the City Region prioritising race equality
• Support organisations to make positive change in the area of race equality

CA AS EMPLOYER

Agenda Item 5

8

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 5



Race Equality Programme Dashboard – Active Projects 

Programme Summary
The Programme is in the initiation and evidence gathering stage and is generally progressing in line with expected schedule. Outline Business Case for tranche 1 projects is targeted for the CA March 
governance cycle. Engagement planning activities are progressing however there is scope for duplication of activity between public sector/CVS agencies and consultation fatigue. Partnership 
opportunities are being investigated to mitigate duplication of engagement activity. Funding and benefits implications at project level require further scoping as part of OBC process. Resource and 
day-to-day budgetary constraints within the Programme team prevail. 

Live Projects Workstream Overall Schedule Cost & 

Benefits

Risk & 

Issues

Comms 

& Engmt.

Summary of recent progress

Declaration of Intent Employer • Draft DOI authorised at Race Equality Programme Board 07/12/2020. Engagement planning currently being undertaken with

a target of commencement in January to inform publishing of final DOI after approval at CA in March 2021. Some risk to this 

schedule due to complexities of community engagement process and activities required to set data baseline. 

CA Equality Audit Employer • Draft report has now been made available to the CA. Further planning activity required to mobilise recommendations (some

risk attached). There are implications presented for the scope of the Race Equality Programme which need consideration 

and resourcing if they are to be taken forward. Costs and benefits of interventions are currently unclear. 

CA Employment Practices 

Review

Employer • On hold until publication of CA Equality Audit report. Potential for scope change further to Equality Audit recommendations. 

• Draft change impact assessment ready for consideration at Programme Board. Significant change management 

considerations need to be planned for as part of this activity. 

BAME Positive Action 

Emp. Infrastructure 

Review

Commissioner • Commission commenced early January & key delivery milestones have been re-baselined. A draft options report is 

expected early March, with final options to be presented to Employment & Skills Board late March & Race Equality 

Programme Board early April.

• Some risk of duplication with other Programme engagement activity, which is being reviewed/mitigated. 

Nia Black Business Hub –

PILOT

Commissioner • GFA now signed and recruitment for posts ongoing. Delivery expected from February.

• Co-development of monitoring & evaluation approach to be undertaken in late January.

ISM Pre Development & 

Education Programme

Commissioner • Design programme launched in January with good media coverage. Risk of increased expectation of funding. 

• Main capital works programme has dependency on multiple funding sources: DCMS (£20m), NLHF (£10m), and philanthropy 

(£10m). Funding outcomes will emerge from April 2021 onwards. Funds for public realm being explored from TCF pipeline 

(£11m). 

Generations for Change Commissioner • Scoping workshops complete and ITT for community provider being drafted, due for issuing early February to facilitate

contract award in March to meet Curious Minds funding deadlines. 

Business Support Facilitator • Business diversity survey closed 25/01/2021, 61 responses achieved (30% BAME response rate). 

• Early insight suggests an opportunity to proceed to develop a project with the aim of supporting businesses to diversify their 

workforce and commissioning processes. Workshops to be diarised with Growth Platform & key stakeholders. 

• Focus groups likely to be taken forward to delve further into barriers for BAME-led businesses accessing business support.

LCR L&D Collaboration Facilitator • Options development workshop undertaken 26/01/2021 with LA L&D partners. Strong consensus and will for 

change/collaboration and outputs will now feed into business case development. 

• Schedule highly constrained & some risk around abstraction of staff to support & gaining knowledge of “best in class” 

approach. 

LCR BAME Staff Network Facilitator • LA CEX’s have authorised setup of group and first meeting hosted by St. Helens expected early February. Comms due to be

launched imminently. 

• Some risk attached to the process as around 500 members of staff across LA’s are eligible to attend. Planning work to ensure

a high quality event is being led by St. Helens. 

Agenda Item 5

9

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5



Proposed timeline

Q4 20/21

Evidence, research 

& project design

Publish 

Declaration of 
Intent

Tranche 1 Project 
Delivery Commences

Community 
Consultation

OBC –
Tranche 1

Q1 21/22 Q2 21/22 Q3 21/22 Q4 21/22

FBC –
Tranche 1

OBC –
Tranche 1

FBC –
Tranche 1

Tranche 2 Project 
Delivery Commences

Pilots & rollout of new ways of working

Agenda Item 5

10

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 5



Race equality is everybody’s responsibility but managers have an added 

responsibility in promoting and embedding equality and diversity.

• How can we embed equality and diversity as a key part of our

organisation’s culture in a way that is tangible and does not pay lip-

service?

• How might our systems, procedures and patterns of work change to

become more race equality friendly?

• What else can we do to promote race equality in our work area?

What can you do? Agenda Item 5

11

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 5



LCRCA is keen to promote co-design to identify the most effective solutions that 

will have the best chance of achieving optimum results.

- Necessary to understand issues and barriers to equality by engaging and

consulting with BAME communities

- LCRCA is keen to co-design solutions in conjunction with BAME communities to

enable best chances of success

- Conscious of the range of engagement activity being undertaken with BAME

communities across LCR e.g. Covid-19 vaccination programme, 2021 census

Stakeholder Engagement Agenda Item 5

12

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 5



- BAME communities in Sefton have historically faced some specific challenges

- Lack of recognition and invisibility/ marginalisation and isolation

- Limited BAME community infrastructure e.g. organisations, services, cultural

infrastructure and activities

- How can these issues best be addressed?

BAME Stakeholder Engagement in Sefton Agenda Item 5

13

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda item 6 

1 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 12th March 2021  
 
Title: Feedback and Evaluation report – Southport Golf Links 
 
Report of:  Martin Sarbutts, Facilities Development and Management Officer, 

Green Sefton x2932 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To provide feedback on the consultation recently undertaken regarding 

Southport Golf Links 
 
 1.2 The Panel have agreed to appraise the Feedback and Evaluation Reports 

in accordance with the standards of public engagement and consultation 
and will consider: - 

 

• How the activity was carried out; 
 

• the opinions of the people taking part on how they found the process; 
 

• The number of people who took part and the costs of the different 
methods of getting them involved;  
 

• How successful different methods were at getting the views of people 
who are not normally heard, for example, children, young people and 
people with disabilities; 
 

• How the results will be fed back to the public; and 
 

• How will the results influence policies and service plans. 
 
2. The Consultation Process 
 

2.1 Consultation was undertaken in October-November 2020 to seek the 
views of both golfers and non-players about the current management of 
the golf course, and its potential development in the future. This was 
promoted on site and on line, with targeted efforts to the resident club, 
existing players, local schools, colleges and businesses. Around 175 
responses were received. 

 
2.2     This consultation was undertaken as part of a wider plan to develop both 

the course and existing facilities including the development of a driving 
range on site. The plan was to see the views of golfers, residents, 
business and visitors and use the information to develop a way forward 
for the course.   

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Agenda item 6 

2 

 

 
 
3. Summary of the Consultation Results 

 
3.1 From the questionnaire responses it is fair to say that the respondents 

enjoy the course, even though they feel the off-course facilities are 
inadequate. The condition of the course is felt to be acceptable and 
respondents appreciate that it stays open most of the year compared to 
other local courses. Despite the poor condition of facilities off the course, 
golfers do continue to use the course. Golfers would like to see 
improvements in all elements of the course, from the course itself, practice 
facilities and the built facilities too, while non-golfers would like 
improvements to the Whitehouse Café. 
 

3.2     There is support for a Driving Range to be developed alongside improving 
the putting green already on site to upgrade the practice facilities available 
to users. There is an overwhelming response to improve the off-course 
facilities with re-opening the Whitehouse Café to provide a bar and 
clubroom with an associated food offer – somewhere for golfers to get hot 
food and drink before, during and after a round of golf. Interestingly a few 
non-golfers responded with the need for a bar as a social place for local 
residents bringing back a facility that was lost to the area a number of 
years ago. On the course itself, people would like to see improvements in 
and around the course including improving the drainage. There was 
overwhelming support for a possible redesign on the course to improve it. 
 

3.3    Overall the consultation has identified the need for significant investment 
in both the practice and built facilities at the course and has also identified 
where smaller investment is needed on the course. Investment is being 
sought to develop the practice facilities through a prudential loan and there 
is a long term ambition to develop the Whitehouse Café to improve the 
built facilities / food and drink offer through a concession. 

 
4. Feedback 
 
 4.1 The summary report (Appendix 1) has been printed and copies left for 

golfers in the shop on site. The four golf clubs resident on the course have 
been emailed copies to distribute to their members. The document is in 
the public domain and when time allows be added to the Golf Pages of 
Sefton’s Website. 

 
 4.2 As a result of the survey responses, a soft market test exercise has been 

undertaken in January/February 2021. This is to look for potential 
investment in the Whitehouse Café and the wider course or a combined 
offer for both. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Agenda item 6 

3 

 

5. Future engagement 
 
 5.1 The public will be kept informed of the developments via information on 

display boards in the golf shop, via resident clubs and via the website. 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel are recommended to 
 
  a) Note the contents of the report and feedback and evaluation forms 
 
  b)  Request that lead officers provide the Public Engagement and 

Consultation Team with the results and reports so that they can be 
uploaded onto e-Consult. 

 
  c) Request that lead officer’s report to a future Panel meeting to update 

the panel as to any additional changes that have occurred as a result 
of the consultation feedback. 

.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Agenda item 6 

4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
This form should be completed for all evaluation, public consultation and engagement 
projects undertaken in the Council.   
 
 

Project Title: Southport Golf Links Consultation 

Lead officer: Martin Sarbutts Contact 
no  

0151 934 2932 

Designation Facility Development 
and Management 
Officer 

E-mail Martin.sarbutts@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose? (please tick) 

 Protect the most vulnerable 

 Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

 Commission, broker and provide core services 

 Place – Leadership and Influencer 

 Drivers of change and reform 

 Facilitate sustainable and economic growth 

 Greater income for social investment 

 Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  
 

 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  
 

 Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Agenda item 6 

5 

 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

No 

Summary of the Consultation/Engagement Undertaken 

 Southport Golf Links has suffered for many years of little or no investment in course 

infrastructure (including the Whitehouse) and this has resulted in a drop in use of the 

sites. By investing in the site, we can encourage greater use again, benefiting people’s 

health and well-being. 

To help ensure that the developments are what customers want, we performed a soft 

consultation to understand the collective wish list of items for development that will shape 

the way forward for the site. 

A short simple questionnaire ranked proposed investment ideas with survey was promoted 
through the Golf Shop, social media via the Green Sefton and Sefton Council. This was 
undertaken at the end on 2020. 

 

Please give details of other partners who were involved in this consultation/ 
engagement activity.  

None 

Methodology  

Simple questionnaire to rank proposed investment ideas  

The surveys were promoted through the Golf Shop, social media via the Green Sefton and 
Sefton Council.  

Findings will be made public via social media and any groups and schools received result 
feedback. Any issues that arise the project team will seek to address. 

 

Did you engage the voluntary, community or faith sector? 

Yes 

What was the overall cost of the consultation/engagement?  What was spent on 
what? 

Nil 

Is there anything you would do differently next time? 

No 

Have the results been fed back? 

Yes – to Cabinet Member and resident clubs at the moment 

How have you used the results of this consultation/engagement and what changes 
have you made? 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Agenda item 6 

6 

 

Signature of Project Lead:  Date: 25 February 2021 
 
Manager Approval: Date: 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 

 

Yes – undertaken a soft market test to look for investment opportunities in the course and 
the associated Whitehouse facility 

What are your plans to keep members of the public informed and involved? 

Media, social media and information in the club shop 

If you require any further information please contact either Jayne Vincent (0151 934 
3733)  

Page 30

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

1 
 

Southport Golf Links Consultation Results 
 

Context 
Consultation was undertaken in October-November 2020 to seek the views of both golfers and non-

players about the current management of the golf course, and its potential development in the 

future. This was promoted on site and on line, with targeted efforts to the resident club, existing 

players, local schools, colleges and businesses. Around 175 responses were received. 

This consultation was undertaken as part of a wider plan to develop both the course and existing 

facilities including the development of a driving range on site. The plan was to see the views of 

golfers, residents, business and visitors and use the information to develop a way forward for the 

course.  

Summary 
From the questionnaire responses it is fair to say that the respondents enjoy the course, even 
though they feel the off-course facilities are inadequate. The condition of the course is felt to be 
acceptable and respondents appreciate that it stays open most of the year compared to other local 
courses. Despite the poor condition of facilities off the course, golfers do continue to use the course. 
Golfers would like to see improvements in all elements of the course, from the course itself, practice 
facilities and the built facilities too, while non-golfers would like improvements to the Whitehouse 
Café. 
 
There is support for a Driving Range to be developed alongside improving the putting green already 
on site to upgrade the practice facilities available to users. There is an overwhelming response to 
improve the off-course facilities with re-opening the Whitehouse Café to provide a bar and clubroom 
with an associated food offer – somewhere for golfers to get hot food and drink before, during and 
after a round of golf. Interestingly a few non-golfers responded with the need for a bar as a social 
place for local residents bringing back a facility that was lost to the area a number of years ago. On 
the course itself, people would like to see improvements in and around the course including 
improving the drainage. There was overwhelming support for a possible redesign on the course to 
improve it. 
 
Overall the consultation has identified the need for significant investment in both the practice and 
built facilities at the course and has also identified where smaller investment is needed on the 
course. Investment is being sought to develop the practice facilities through a prudential loan and 
there is a long term ambition to develop the Whitehouse Café to improve the built facilities / food 
and drink offer through a concession. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

2 
 

 

 

 

Question 1 – Who are You? 
This question showed that the majority of respondents were residents of the borough (93%) and 6% 
were from outside the borough. 
 

Question 2 – Are you a golfer 

 
 

Overwhelmingly, 93% of responses were from golfers, either pay and play (P&P) or contract holders. 
7% were from non-golfers. One issue is we didn’t ask if the contracts were from the course or other 
courses. 
 

Question 3 – How often do you use Southport Golf Links? 
This gave a good indication of how popular Southport Golf Links actually is among golfers. Over half 
of those who responded play the course at least once a month. 

Contract

Pay and Play

Non 
Golfer

Not answered

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

In response to asking why people don’t play the course mostly the response was around 
improvements needed. A number of responses did however indicate better value for money 
elsewhere and a lack of refreshment facilities was an issue. 
 

What other courses do you play? 
This was a simple question to show where else customers play (and find out who we are competing 
with). There was a wide variety of results but the most popular was Southport Golf Academy. Bootle 
Golf Course was popular as were local private courses including Hesketh Golf Club, Southport Old 
Links, Hurleston Hall and Formby Hall. 
 

 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Daily

More than once a week

Once a week

Once a month

Twice a month

Occassionally

Never

How Often Played

How Often Payed

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

A
in

tr
e

e 
G

o
lf

 C
en

tr
e

A
lle

rt
o

n
 M

an
o

r

B
ar

ri
n

gt
o

n
 H

al
l

B
ea

co
n

 G
o

lf
 C

o
u

rs
e

B
la

ck
p

o
o

l N
o

rt
h

 S
h

o
re

B
lu

n
d

e
ll 

P
ar

k

B
o

o
tl

e
 G

o
lf

B
o

w
ri

n
g 

P
ar

k

C
h

ar
n

o
ck

 R
ic

h
ar

d

D
u

xb
u

ry

Fo
rm

b
y 

G
o

lf
 C

e
n

tr
e

Fo
rm

b
y 

G
o

lf
 C

lu
b

Fo
rm

b
y 

H
al

l

G
at

h
u

rs
t

H
ar

t 
C

o
m

m
o

n

H
es

ke
th

 G
C

H
ill

si
d

e

H
o

u
gh

w
o

o
d

H
u

rl
st

o
n

 H
al

l

h
u

yt
o

n
 &

 p
re

sc
o

tt

K
ir

kb
y

le
as

o
w

el
l

M
o

ss
o

ck
 H

al
l

R
o

ya
l B

ir
kd

al
e

Sh
er

d
le

y 
P

ar
k

So
u

th
p

o
rt

 A
n

d
 A

in
sd

al
e

So
u

th
p

o
rt

 G
o

lf
 A

ca
d

em
y

So
u

th
p

o
rt

 O
ld

 L
in

ks

W
es

t 
D

er
b

y

W
es

t 
La

n
cs

W
o

o
lt

o
n

Number of Responses

Number of Responses

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

How Do You Rate the facilities? 
The next set of questions looked at how people rated the current conditions of facilities on the site. 
Overall this was not a great response in terms of how people rated the facilities however the 
condition of the course itself was seen as more favourable.  
 
The Grounds maintenance was seen as adequate or better for the majority (including tees, greens 
and fairways) as was the access and car parking. In terms of the green keeping, some ad-hoc 
comments felt they did the best they can with what they have but others felt they need to do more 
and more staff are required. 
 
The built facilities views are much worse with poor responses across the board on this. The course 
currently has limited changing rooms and dated but functional toilets. The food provision is mostly 
snacks and drinks from the shop and this shown in the rating for this area. 
 

 
 

Rank the Built Facility Improvements 
This question asked people to rank the improvements suggested on the built facilities in order to 
determine what people felt was the highest priority. The results indicate the majority of people 
would like to see improvements across all facilities but the highest priority is the Whitehouse Café 
and toilets followed by improvements to the shop and changing rooms.  

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Shop/reception

Food Provision

Changing rooms

Toilets

Parking

Access

Signage

Tees

Greens

Fairways

Ground Maintenance

Course Furniture

Facility Condition

very poor poor adequate good very good not answered

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

5 
 

 
 

Rank the Practice Facility Improvements 
This tried to determine preferences for improvements in practice facilities at the course. Presently 
there is only a small putting green available for use prior to a game of golf. Results indicate strong 
support for improving the existing green as well as developing a driving range and chipping area. 
 

 
 

Rank the Course Improvements  
This question tried to rank the improvements suggested on the course to try and raise the 
experience when playing the course. Once ranked, the highest supported element could be 

White House Café
31%

Toilets
25%

Shop
24%

Changing Rooms
20%

Building Facility Improvements

White House Café Toilets Shop Changing Rooms

25%

24%

20%

16%

15%

PRACTICE FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

Driving Range Putting Green Chipping Area Floodlights Bunker Area

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

6 
 

identified and developed. One thing not asked was drainage and add hoc comments through the 
consultation highlighted this as a major area of work including maintaining existing ditches. 

 
 

Course Redesign 
This suggests people would be happy if the course was redesigned to help. The overwhelming 
response was they would be but that it would have to be in sympathy with the current design and 
staggered to prevent loss of golfers to other courses. 
 

 

Irrigation
37%

Signage
24%

Litter Bins
23%

Buggies
16%

Course Improvements

Irrigation Signage Litter Bins Buggies

Yes
63%

No
11%

Maybe
25%

No Answer
1%

COURSE REDESIGN

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

7 
 

 

Climate Change 
We looked at how the course could help combat climate change, with a question around ideas that 

could contribute to this agenda. The ideas backed up thoughts elsewhere in the consultation with 

sustainable irrigation systems and raising the course to combat flooding being the most popular 

thoughts. 

 

Price Increases? 
We asked if customers would be willing to pay more if facilities were better. Here the obvious 

response of ‘it depends on the improvements’ was the most popular. In other ad-hoc comments 

people felt the price at the moment was a little high for the offer. 

4.8

3.54
3.27

3.01
2.75 2.72

SUSTAINABLE 
IRRIGATION

REDESIGN TO 
COMBAT 

FLOODING

IMPROVE 
WILDLIFE 
HABITATS

RENEWABLE 
ENERGY

RECYCLE REDUCE THE USE 
OF PLASTICS

Ideas

Ideas

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

8 
 

 

Coaching 
We also asked if people would be more likely to play if there were specific sessions for beginners and 
juniors. As expected for a questionnaire mostly answered by existing users, the response was no 
(52%), but there was still some support for coaching sessions at the course and this was further 
highlighted with a number of ad-hoc comments for a Golf Professional on site (27%). 
 

Any other ideas to improve Southport Golf Links? 
Finally, a somewhat open-ended question was asked to determine if respondents had any other 
ideas for improving the visitor experience at Southport Golf Links. The overwhelming response to 
this was to open the Whitehouse again as a café/bar/restaurant with changing rooms and toilets 
which would not only attract customers but could also double as an event venue for the area 
including weddings, birthdays etc. This could help in improving the off-course facilities which have 
been identified by respondents as below adequate and the reason some do not play the course.  
 
As the question was open ended, it has been difficult to analyse effectively but key themes have 
been drawn out and identified in the table. 
 

Yes
32%

No
9%

Maybe
59%

Price Increase

Yes No Maybe

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



  Agenda Item 6a 
November 2020 
 

9 
 

 
 
 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

ad
d

 t
re

e
s

ad
d

 w
al

k 
ar

o
u

n
d

 p
er

im
e

te
r

al
te

r 
te

e
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

m
o

re
at

tr
ac

t 
ch

ild
re

n
b

ar
 f

ac
ili

ty
b

e
tt

er
 s

ig
n

ag
e

ca
r 

p
ar

ki
n

g
cl

ea
n

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

fo
r 

sh
o

e
s 

an
d

 t
ro

lli
e

s
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
h

u
b

co
n

si
d

er
 n

ei
gh

b
o

u
rs

d
is

co
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
u

n
em

p
lo

ye
d

d
ri

vi
n

g 
ra

n
ge

en
su

re
 p

ro
p

er
 g

o
lf

 a
tt

ir
e

 a
n

d
 e

ti
q

u
et

te
fe

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

re
ss

 g
re

en
s

fl
o

o
d

lig
h

t 
w

h
o

le
 c

o
u

rs
e

fo
o

d
 o

ff
er

Fr
ie

n
d

s 
o

f 
G

ro
u

p
G

o
lf

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
im

p
ro

ve
 b

u
n

ke
rs

im
p

ro
ve

 d
ra

in
ag

e
in

d
o

o
r 

fa
ci

lit
y 

o
n

 P
&

R
in

ve
st

m
e

n
t

m
an

ag
e

 r
o

u
gh

 b
et

te
r

m
o

n
th

ly
 m

e
m

b
er

sh
ip

s
M

o
re

 g
re

en
ke

ep
er

s
m

o
re

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
m

o
re

 p
at

h
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 b
u

gg
ie

s 
th

ro
u

gh
 w

in
te

r
m

o
re

 t
re

es
n

o
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 -

 s
m

al
l b

en
e

fi
t 

to
 a

 s
m

al
l c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
o

p
en

 w
h

it
eh

o
u

se
o

ve
rp

ri
ce

d
p

ra
ct

ic
e

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
p

ri
ce

 n
o

t 
co

m
p

e
ti

ti
ve

p
ro

m
o

te
 v

ia
 s

o
ci

al
 m

ed
ia

p
ro

te
ct

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
fr

o
m

 b
al

ls
re

m
o

ve
 c

lu
b

s 
an

d
 c

re
at

e 
1

re
m

o
ve

 m
o

u
n

d
s

re
n

o
va

te
 e

xi
st

in
g 

d
e

si
gn

ru
n

 9
 a

n
d

 1
8

 h
o

le
 c

o
m

p
s

sa
n

d
 f

ai
rw

ay
s 

an
d

 r
o

u
gh

se
ll 

la
n

d
 f

o
r 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d

 b
u

ild
 n

ew
 m

u
n

i…
sh

ar
e 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

w
it

h
 o

th
er

 c
o

u
rs

es
sh

o
p

so
ci

al
 m

ed
ia

 p
re

se
n

ce

Improvement Ideas

Improvement Ideas

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7 

1 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 12th March 2021 
 
Title: SEND Parent and Carer Survey – update report  
 
Report of:  Jayne Vincent, Consultation and Engagement Lead 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive an update report in connection to the SEND Parent and 

Carer Survey. 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
2.2      As part of the governance of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board 

(SEND CIB), a sub group has been established for co-production, 
communication and consultation to provide assurance to the Board that: 

 
i) the voices of children and young people are heard 
ii) regular engagement sessions are being held with Parent Carer Forum 

and partners 
iii) parents and carers are involved in the identification of joint activity  
iv) trust and confidence in the system is growing and that corrective action 

is put in place where necessary 
v) Parents and Children and Young People have had input into the 

Performance and Quality Framework 
 
 
3. SEND Parent and Carer Baseline Survey 
 
 3.1 One of the key activities of the Sub-group was to design a survey for 

parents/carers of children and young people with Special Educational 
Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND), on what is going well and what could 
be improved in our local area.  

 
 3.2 The SENDCIB agreed that the survey should be conducted annually, 

with a mid-year shorter survey to capture the parent and carer opinion 
of the local area provision and to track the perception of the impact of 
the reforms identified in the SEND Improvement Action Plan.   The 
SEND Co-production, Communication and Engagement Sub-Group 
would oversee both the short survey and the annual in-depth survey. 

  

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7 

2 

 

3.3 A Task & Finish Group was established which included two 
representatives of the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum, the Consultation 
and Engagement Lead and the SEN & Inclusion Policy Development 
Officers met in the first instance to draft the survey, using examples from 
the North-West Sector Led Improvement Group.   

 
 3.4 A report was presented to the Public Engagement and Consultation 

Panel in November 2019 to provide information on the activities of the 
Coproduction, Communication and Consultation Sub group, including 
the plans for the survey.  

 
 3.5 The survey was undertaken between 18th November – 18th December 

2019 and was completed by 254 respondents (16% response rate). 
 
 3.6 The consultation report was presented to the SEND Continuous 

Improvement Board (SENDCIB) in January 2020 that outlined the 
feedback from parents and carers on what was going well and what 
could be improved in our local area.  The report was also shared with 
the Health & Wellbeing Board in March 2020. The full consultation 
report can be viewed here. 

 
 3.7 The baseline survey helped provide the SEND Continuous 

Improvement Board with a baseline to monitor experience, involvement 
and satisfaction around the key areas of Education, Health, Social Care, 
Information provision and on how the system is working together and to 
identify and action areas for improvement. 

 
4. SEND Parent and Carer Short Survey 
 

4.1     A Task & Finish Group, including a representative of the Sefton Parent 
and Carer Forum designed the short survey (7 questions) to capture 
feedback on the following six areas, to provide direct indication of the 
change in customer satisfaction correlated to the improvement objects 
of the SEND Improvement Action Plan.  

 

• Increased level of trust and confidence of parents and carers in the local 
area to provide support   

• Parents, carers and young people rate the level of help and support 
children and young people with SEND receive to meet their needs    

• Parents, carers and young people rate the level of information and 
advice available about the assessment process to support children and 
young people with SEND    

• Parents and carers feel that they can influence change to service 
delivery 

• Parents and carers feel that they are listened to in the development and 
review of EHCPs (Collected Via Survey) 

• Parents, carers and young people believe that communication has 
improved 

 
 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7

https://search3.openobjects.com/mediamanager/sefton/fsd/files/send_parent_and_carer_survey_2019_report_v1_1final_and_approved_.pdf
https://search3.openobjects.com/mediamanager/sefton/fsd/files/send_parent_and_carer_survey_2019_report_v1_1final_and_approved_.pdf


Agenda Item 7 

3 

 

 
4.2     The original intention was for the mid-year shorter survey to take place 

in June 2020. However due to the COVID 19 pandemic, it was agreed 
by the SENDCIB in June 2020 to change the dates for conducting the 
shorter parent/carer survey from June to September 2020, and to move 
the main survey from December 2020 to February 2021  When this 
decision was taken in June it was thought that we would be in more of 
a ‘recovery’ phase of the pandemic in September. However, following 
a second wave of the pandemic there has been continued service 
pressures resulting from the prolonged COVID response and families 
have experienced school closures and were preparing for their child/ren 
returning to a very different school environment. 

 
4.3 Despite this second wave of the virus, the SENDCIB decided to 

continue with the survey as planned, particularly as the survey was 
short and would take a few minutes to complete and it was felt that it 
was important to hear the feedback from parents and carers at this 
unprecedented time. It is important to try and understand the impact 
COVID has had on the experiences of parents and carers and the 
results of this survey need to be understood in this context. 

 
4.4 It was agreed that the short survey would be an online open survey on 

the Council’s online consultation hub and that the survey and a 
feedback flyer (appendix 1) would also be promoted via the Sefton 
Parent and Carer Forum membership, and through a network of 
distributors.  The short survey took place between 14th September – 
16th October and was completed by 243 respondents (13% response 
rate).   

 
4.5 In summary the consultation headlines were: 

 

• Trust and confidence in the Sefton SEND Local Area to provide help 
and support is increasing, despite the challenges of COVID-19 

 

• Whilst there is recognition that improvements are being made in the 
Sefton local area, with approximately half of those responding to this 
survey positively, there are however 52% of the parents and carers who 
responded to this survey still unhappy with the level of service.  It would 
appear from the feedback that the majority of those dissatisfied may 
have been in the ‘system’ for an extended period 

 

• In the first consultation in 2019, 55% of respondents were satisfied that 
they received the right level of information.  It would appear in the 
interim period, there has been little change with 54% affirming that they 
receive the right level of information throughout the EHCP assessment 
process  

 

• Parents and carers are reporting an improvement in the way health, 
education, social care and the SEN Casework team are working 
together to help and support them 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7 

4 

 

 

• Education and schools stand out for praise from respondents, 
particularly in relation to regular contact and information, and in 
understanding a child’s specific needs 

 

• There is an increase in the number of parents and carers who feel that 
they are listened to in the development and review of their child/young 
person’s EHCP 

 

• Whilst improvements are being made, there are areas parents and 
carers feel need further attention, namely; 

 
- Improved communication and information from all parts of the SEND 

system 
- Waiting times for both written reports and appointments with 

educational psychologists and Speech & Language Therapists and 
health professionals 

- Waiting times for annual EHCP reviews 
- Parents and carers feeling listened to and involved in shaping the 

wider SEND services 
- Continue the work done to ensure services are working together to 

help improve services and outcomes for children and young people. 
 

4.6 The full consultation report was presented to the SEND CIB in 
November 2020 and the report can be viewed here. 

 
 
5. SEND Parent and Carer Spring 2021 survey 
 

5.1      At its meeting on the 26th January 2021, the SEND CIB agreed that 
they would like the full survey to be repeated in February 2021.  The 
Task and Finish Group have met to review and plan a third survey, 
which will be a full survey, with ‘like-for-like’ questions but with a couple 
of additional questions: 

 

• There would be a question at the beginning of the survey to help gauge 

the length of time the respondent has been engaged with services (<12 

months, 1 – 3 years and > 3 years)  

• A question at the end of the Education, Health and Social Care sections 

to see if the COVID pandemic has affected their response to the section 

and if so, to understand how. 

5.2 After consulting the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum Steering Group, it 

was agreed to propose the follow timeline, to allow for completion 

before the Easter holidays. 

 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7

https://search3.openobjects.com/mediamanager/sefton/fsd/files/send_parent_and_carer_short_survey_2020_report_v1_1_final_and_approved.pdf
https://search3.openobjects.com/mediamanager/sefton/fsd/files/send_parent_and_carer_short_survey_2020_report_v1_1_final_and_approved.pdf


Agenda Item 7 

5 

 

Survey design and sign-off 9th – 26th February 
2021 

Survey Live 1st – 26th March 2021 

Analysis of results 29th March – 1st April 
2021 

Report writing and sign-off 12th – 16th April 2021 

Report presented to Board 27th April 2021 

 
 

5.3 Due to these timescales, it wasn’t possible to bring the survey to the 
Public Engagement and Consultation Panel prior to commencing the 
Spring survey.  As mentioned above the questions are the same as the 
baseline survey, seen by the Panel in November 2019, with the extra 
few questions, as mentioned above.  The survey is currently live on the 
Consultation Hub (at the time of the Panel meeting) and can be viewed 
here. 

 
5.4 Since the baseline survey was completed in 2019, a great deal of work 

has been undertaken by the Board and its wider partners as part of the 
Improvement Plan and the feedback from both the baseline and short 
survey’s and the Board wanted to share this with parents and carers.  A 
second Feedback Flyer (Appendix 2) has been produced and has been 
shared with parent and carers, is on the consultation hub and on the 
Local Offer. 

 
5.5 The Task & Finish Group, in conjunction with the Sefton Parent and 

Carer Forum Steering Group have been considering how to increase 
the response rate.  The response rate has been similar with both the 
baseline and short surveys and the promotion of the third survey will 
follow the extensive methods applied previously.  To help encourage 
response to the survey, the Board considered and have agreed 
providing additional resource to carry our completion of the survey over 
the telephone (dip-sampling a proportion of people new to the service 
within the past 12 months and a proportion of people who have been 
receiving services for more than 12 months) and provide a prize draw 
of 3 x £50 shopping vouchers to help incentivise completion. 

 
5.6 The Task & Finish Group will analyse the responses of the Spring 2021 

survey and will prepare a report for the April meeting of the Board. 
 

 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 

6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the SEND Parent and Carer 
Survey update report and has no comments to make. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/business-intelligence/sefton-parent-carer-send-survey-2021
https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/business-intelligence/sefton-parent-carer-send-survey-2021
https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/business-intelligence/sefton-parent-carer-send-survey-2021
https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/business-intelligence/sefton-parent-carer-send-survey-2021


Agenda Item 7 

6 

 

7. Recommendations 
 

7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Note the SEND Parent and Carer Survey update report. 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

SEND Consultation 

Feedback from the 2019 Public 
Consultation Exercise on Special 
Educational Needs and/or Disabilities 
(SEND) Local Area Provision in Sefton 

Released: March 2020 

Jayne Vincent 
Commissioning Support & Business Intelligence Service 
Data, Insight, Business Intelligence, & Performance 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
1

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Document Control 

Issue/Amendment Record 

Version Date of Issue Reason for Issue 

V0.1 10/01/2020 Internal draft for distribution and comment 

V1.1 11/03/2020 Final and approved 

Document Ownership 

Role Name/Title 

Author Jayne Vincent 

Consultation and Engagement Lead 

Release 
Authority 

Wayne Leatherbarrow 

Service Manager - Performance & Intelligence 

Location 

Distribution 

Elected Members 

Interim Director, Children’s Social Care and Education 

Chief Officer, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Head of Education Excellence 

Head of Communities 

Head of Strategic Support 

NHS South Sefton CCG, NHS Southport and Formby CCG and NHS Liverpool CCG Designated Clinical Officer 
(DCO) 

Members of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board 

Sefton Health and Wellbeing Board 

Parents and Carers 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
2

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Contents 

Introduction .......................................................................................................................... 4 

Summary of Qualitative Analysis ......................................................................................... 7 

Complaints Analysis........................................................................................................... 14 

Annexe.1 ............................................................................................................................ 17 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Health Questions ............................................... 17 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Education Questions ......................................... 20 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Social Care Questions ....................................... 23 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Other Questions ................................................ 26 

Other Graphs .................................................................................................................. 27 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
3

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to provide an initial overview of the views and opinions of 
those people/parents and carers that responded to the public consultation on Special 
Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).  This is the first consultation activity relating to 
SEND since the 2017 SEND inspection and subsequent 2019 re-visit, which identified 
communication as an area to be addressed in order to improve services to children and 
young people with SEND. 

Background and context 

As part of the governance of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board, a sub group has 
been established for co-production, communication and consultation to provide assurance 
to the Board that: 

i) the voices of children and young people are heard
ii) regular engagement sessions are being held with Parent Carer Forum and partners
iii) parents and carers are involved in the identification of joint activity
iv) trust and confidence in the system is growing and that corrective action is put in

place where necessary
v) Parents and Children and Young People have had input into the Performance and

Quality Framework

One of the key activities of the sub-group was to carry out an annual survey for 
parents/carers of children and young people with SEND, on what is going well and what 
could be improved in our local area. 

This survey would help provide the SEND Continuous Improvement Board with a baseline 
to monitor experience, involvement and satisfaction around the key areas of Education, 
Health, Social Care, Information provision and on how the system is working together. 

A task & finish group which included two representatives of the Sefton Parent and Carer 
Forum, the Consultation and Engagement Lead and the SEN & Inclusion Policy 
Development Officer met in the first instance to draft the survey, using examples from the 
North-West Sector Led Improvement Group.  The draft survey was then circulated to the 
sub group members and an Easy Read specialist for review and a final draft prepared. 

The survey was distributed via the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum membership, a 
stakeholder database and through a direct mailshot to 1,588 parents and carers of children 
with an Education, Health and Care Plan, with a freepost envelope and to schools for 
information to be distributed via the school newsletters and websites.  The survey was also 
on the Council’s online consultation hub and promoted on the Local Offer. 

The survey was also available in a hard copy version and parents and carers who need 
support to complete the survey can call a dedicated officer for support to complete the 
survey over the telephone or face-to-face. It was available for completion from the 18th 
November – 18th December 2019. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
4

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Summary of Quantitative Analysis

Quantitative analysis means, to measure by quantity rather than quality. When we do 
quantitative analysis, we are exploring facts, measures, numbers, and percentages. 

The survey was completed by 254 respondents, which is a 16% response rate.  100 
people completed the survey on-line and 154 by returning a hard copy of the survey and 
the responses being inputted manually.  Ideally, a response rate of 30%+ would have 
provided a stronger indication and reduced the margin of error associated with the 
responses received. For the purpose of this initial draft, where any respondent has 
indicated that the question asked is not applicable to their circumstances or did not 
respond, the figures presented within this report have been accordingly adjusted to reflect 
an accurate view of those that did respond. 

The questionnaire was themed around 6 key areas: 

1. General Information
2. Education
3. Health
4. Social Care
5. SEND Information, advice and guidance
6. SEND ‘System’ (the end to end process of assessment to provision)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Of the respondents, the majority had either an EHCP or SEN Support Plan.  Eleven 
respondents indicated that their child/young person was currently in the process of being 
assessed for an EHCP. 

The responses covered the age-range 0-25 years; however, most children and young 
people of children and young people were aged either between 5 – 11 years and 12 – 16 
years. 

Children and young people have a broad spectrum of (multiple) need with autism being the 
most prevalent followed by Sensory Processing Disorder and then mental health/emotional 
needs. 

Children and young people attend a broad range of education settings, with many children 
attending a LA specialist school, followed by mainstream primary provision and secondary 
provision respectively. 

Over 48% of the respondents classified their child/young person’s ethnicity as White 
British, with a further 34% classifying ethnicity as UK (Welsh, English, Scottish and 
Northern Irish). 3.2% classified as Mixed Ethnic, Black or Asian. Over 5% preferred not to 
provide ethnic detail.  

68% of the respondents, child/young person were male, with more than 91% living in the 
gender they were given at birth and 59% classifying their child/young person as 
heterosexual (although with this question, more than 37% of respondents choose not to 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
5

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

answer).  More than 45% of the respondents stated that their child/young person religious 
belief was Christian and more than 35% had no religious belief.  

8% of the responses suggested that although their child/young person had SEND, they 
were also young carers. 

In summary, the responses to the questions asked in the consultation where mixed, with a 
both favourable and negative responses. The quantified responses to each of the 
questions asked are detailed in Annexe 1. Respondents reaction to or feeling about 
something was captured in the qualitative analysis. 

2. EDUCATION

In summary, most respondents felt that their child’s educational needs are being met and 
that they are listened to and engaged positively by the education provider/placement.  
Conversely many respondents were dissatisfied with the ease of communication with the 
local authority SEND service and dissatisfied with the timeliness of response to enquiries 
and requests for information.  

3. HEALTH

In summary, most respondents felt that their child’s health needs were being met by their 
GP and that their GP was working well with other health professionals to ensure that their 
child’s needs were assessed and monitored, however timeliness of overall health provision 
and communication with health services were identified as concerns.  

Most respondents felt that they are listened to and engaged positively by the health 
economy, however, finding information and advice about health services and pathways for 
children and young people with SEND was challenging.  Again, respondents felt that 
enquires and requests for information were not responded to in a timely manner.  Most 
respondents indicated that they were dissatisfied with Paediatric assessment, provision 
and monitoring. 

4. SOCIAL CARE

In summary, most respondents felt that communication with the Local Authority relating to 
their child’s social care needs is positive, they are listened to and that their child or young 
person’s needs are being met.  In particular, the responses about the Aiming High Team 
were positive, although concerns are raised about the provision from the Children with 
Disabilities Team.  

5. SEND INFORMATION, ADVICE AND GUIDANCE

In summary, many of the respondents had heard of the Sefton SEND Local Offer and of 
the SEND information and advice service (SENDIASS), however they report that they 
have not used the Local Offer or the SENDIASS service in the six months leading up to 
completing the survey. The responses received about the transition provision showed that 
under half of the respondents were satisfied with the service, but more than half were 
dissatisfied with the level of support provided by the Local Authority, particularly as their 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
6

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

children prepared for and transitioned to adulthood and the lack of information available 
through the Local Offer and SEND service. 

6. SEND SYSTEM (end to end process of assessment to monitoring)

76% of respondents said that they hadn’t seen an improvement in the local area SEND 
provision from their experience at the time of the consultation.  
54% of respondents agreed that the local area services (Education, Health and Social 
Care) were working well together to help their children or young people reach their full 
potential, with 33% agreeing 21% responding that services were just ok. 46% of 
respondents indicated that the local area services were not working together effectively to 
together to help their children or young people reach their full potential. 

Summary of Qualitative Analysis 

From the 254 responses to the survey, there were several comments provided by parents 
and carers in relation to the different sections of the survey.  These have been analysed 
and a summary of the findings are below.  

EDUCATION 

In the main parents and carers have had positive experiences in relation to the support 
from their child/young person’s school/college and have named schools/colleges which 
they feel are providing good support and experience for their child/young person and for 
themselves.  Parents and carers generally feel supportive and listened to from school staff 
and have found that when their child/young person has moved from one (or more schools) 
to the right school/college for their son/daughter, their experience has improved. 

“Education were supportive and listened to our views and that of our young person.” 

“My child began specialist setting from September 2019. The school is exceptional. My 
daughter has always struggled with mainstream school and this is the 5th school during 

her childhood”. 

“My daughter’s school and everyone in it have been amazing and will continue to be.” 

“The level of communication between the parent and the secondary school is excellent, if 
any concerns are raised, they are dealt with promptly”. 

“My daughter has moved to a brand-new provision within a mainstream primary school this 
academic year which is perfect for her.  The attitude of staff is amazing and so inclusive”. 

There are, however, some areas for improvement suggested by parents and carers.  
There are some reports that schools are not following the EHCP’s and that the process is 
too long, that schools may benefit from increased training to improve SEN knowledge and 
mainstream schools may benefit from training to improve inclusion.  There are also some 
reports that there isn’t consistency in the support and knowledge of SENDCO’s. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
7

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

“School have been horrendous no end of issues and not following EHCP”. 

“I have found there is a huge difference in the level of understanding and available support 
across schools within the borough.” 

“In contrast, the SENCO at their second primary school could not do enough to support. 
They were highly knowledgeable and experienced and thoroughly committed to their job. A 

complete contrast to our first experience.” 

“Mainstream school are not particularly understanding or make allowances for additional 
needs. They are not always inclusive and do not seem to grasp that our children's need 

are (sic) relentless and anything can trigger a change.” 

With regards to the SEND Team, the parents and carers experiences are focussed on the 
lack of communication, contact, support and the EHCP process.  There is some 
recognition for staff shortages but generally parents and carers feel that there is little or no 
information or contact from the SEND team and are not sure who is their main contact is.   

The level of support available is not as prevalent once the child/young person leaves 
school.  Parents and carers would like more support through the EHCP process. There are 
also a couple of comments about the EHCP review being completed by the school. 
In relation to the EHCP, comments were received in connection to not knowing how the 
process works, waiting times and timely responses, communication during the process 
and monitoring and reviews not taking place or a delay. 

“There’s no communication from the SEND team. They are difficult to contact, it’s difficult 
to find out who’s dealing, and that person changes a lot.” 

“It took 14 months for my daughters EHCP to be done and no one has ever been in touch 
to see if everything is okay since.” 

“Have been waiting 9 months for EHCP. Met in September and have heard nothing since 
despite emails.” 

“There is no monitoring by LEA SEN team of the provision or EHCP.” 

“From initially realising you may need additional help with your child it is very unclear what 
processes you have to follow.  For example, how do you apply for funding, how do you 
apply for an EHCP, how do you access help from speech & language etc. etc. A simple 

flow diagram demonstrating how to proceed and options available would be invaluable at 
the start of this process.” 

In relation to Education Psychology, a few comments were received in relation to parents 
and carers requesting an assessment as they believed the school was concerned with 
academic attainment rather than their child’s emotional welfare, a delay between 
assessments and mixed experiences of receiving the service. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
8

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Parents and carers also provided some feedback about funding.  They are unsure how to 
apply for funding and they report that the feedback from the Higher Needs Funding Panel 
takes a long time and that in some cases the high needs funding is not being used for the 
child even though the school is claiming it.  Conversely, some parents believe that there 
should be more funding available to schools. 

HEALTH 

There are some examples where parents and carers have had a good experience of 
health professionals and health services.  

“Dr Jennifer Dainty at child psychology, within Alder Hey Children’s Hospital, does 
excellent work with (child). Health visitor Bev Cashmore has also been amazing with 

(child) and the rest of our family”. 

“APD Team - very satisfied 
Specialist - very satisfied 
ADHD clinic very good” 

“Again, they appear overstretched but are helpful once you speak with them”. 

The most prevalent parent and carer experiences are connected to appointments to see 
health professionals and waiting times.  Parents and carers have feedback that the 
support therapies (Occupational Therapy Speech and Language Therapy) and CAMHS 
are limited and can be discharged, in their opinion, too early.  Parents and carers report 
that they are waiting long periods for diagnosis and anything between 6 months and over 3 
years for an appointment to see a Paediatrician and appointments can be cancelled at 
short notice and where appointments take place, parents and carers are having to repeat 
information already given to health professionals.  They also report that children and 
young people can be removed off the waiting lists and some parents and carers must start 
the process all over again.   

Some appointments for medication were also cancelled, with some reports that medication 
was not forthcoming.  When parents and carers tried to contact Alder Hey and the Alder 
Hey repeat prescription line about this, they didn’t always have a good experience. 

“I have waited over 12 months for an appointment! I phone up every month and there are 
no appointments”. 

“Paediatric appointments are impossible to get, and when you do get one allocated, it is 
highly likely to be cancelled at short notice. My child is supposed to be on 3-month review, 

due to medication, they were last seen 18 months ago.” 

“They don't attend EHC reviews or input. Paediatrician constantly overstretched.  Difficult 
to get appointments.  Long waiting lists (i.e. dermatology).  Alder Hey repeat prescription 

line is dreadful - urgently needs improvement.  You never know if your message is 
received, always have to chase it up. Pharmacy gets backlogged etc. always causes 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
9

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

stress - if you put the request in too early it's rejected and if on time you have to chase it, 
stress is caused by worrying whether you'll receive prescription before child runs out.  

Paediatric appts (meant to be every 6 months) usually overrun so 3 months pres. won't be 
given, only a month, so as a parent you have to take the child to GP for height, weight, 

blood pressure”. 

“Have not been seen in clinic since 2016 diagnosis given 2017/18 then letter removing him 
from community paediatrician service have had to ask GP for another referral!”. 

Parents and carers report that communication between services are limited and suggest 
that more cross-communications is needed between health professionals and parents and 
carers and between health professionals and better joint working and coordination is 
needed between health, education and the Local Authority. 

Parents and carers feel that the monitoring and assessment process could be improved, in 
particular, health involvement in the EHCP reviews and support for older young people 
(aged 18 +) as they move from children to adult services.  Parents and carers also believe 
that there should be more funding to provide services and suggest that there should be 
more early support, which should include more commissioned therapies.  

In relation to understanding the role of the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO), twenty-one 
comments were received; a few indicating that they didn’t know the purpose of the role, 
but most responses were themed around being the health contact, overseeing the health 
support in place & liaise with educations & social care to ensure joined up support for 
children and young people with SEND and their families, improving quality and 
accountability and monitoring provision. 

SOCIAL CARE 

There is a lot of support and positive experiences from both parent/carers and children and 
young people perspectives for the Aiming High service.  Parent and carers who have had 
a positive experience value the activity offer for their son/daughter in terms of trying 
different activities and socialising and because their attendance enables respite and time 
for parents and carers to spend time with their other children. 

“It has helped relationship within the family, helped recuperate and catch up on sleep, 
helps our mental health and gives us time with other children”. 

“Aiming high are fantastic!! They have given us some much-needed time off and our kids 
love going” 

“They help my child learn social skills and give his sibling time to do his own thing”. 
“Respite time for mum and dad.  Confidence building for our son and quality family time on 

family days”. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
10

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

“Massive amazing support for my child. Aiming high is brilliant for things to do with your 
child during school holidays and my child can mix other children without been judged staff 

are helpful friendly and very supportive”. 

There are a few parents and carers however, who report that they have found it difficult for 
their son/daughter to be referred, that the activities do not always meet the needs of all 
children and a lack of communication when parents and carers have tried to contact the 
service. There are also some parents and carers who reported that they were not aware of 
the service. 

“I tried to self-refer and was told it has to be done by a professional. No services are 
providing support so he can’t access it”. 

“Supposed to access but does not meet needs”. 

“Takes multiple phone calls and then weeks for any communication”. 

“No help or information offered regarding this service”. 

Some parents and carers did also report that their son/daughter attend other youth and 
play activities in the local community, ranging from after-school clubs, uniform groups, 
Buddy Up, Bootle Bucks and other sporting clubs and attend the local libraries and 
museums and value these activities but there are a few parents and carers who report that 
it is difficult to find extra-curricular activities that cater for children with complex needs. 

In relation to social care, there are some examples where parents and carers have had 
positive experiences: 

“Catherine Blevin our early help worker has been excellent”. 

“Myself, the college SENCO, safe guarding officer and ASD mental health team all work 
together to support my son”. 

Generally, however, the reported feedback is that whilst there is some acknowledgment of 
staff being ‘over-stretched’, parents and carers’ experience focusses on the limited or no 
contact with a social worker or changes to their social worker, the assessment, referral and 
review processes and information, including on the criteria and support available for both 
parents and carers and children and young people, including those who aged 18 plus, not 
being readily available or communicated. 

“I'm waiting for 2 weeks for social care to contact me”. 

“Takes multiple phone calls and then weeks for any communication”. 

“Have tried to apply to adoption support fund and got no answer. There are not the teams 
available in Sefton to meet my son's needs”. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
11

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

“Trying to find out what’s available is so difficult. There’s no help or guidance offered when 
trying to find support suitable for my child….” 

Some parents report that they use direct payments and there are mixed reports.  Whilst 
these are valued in respect of enabling short breaks, the packages may not always be 
enough, and it was reported that social workers are not always able to explain or seem to 
understand direct payments.   A few parents and carers also seemed to be unaware of the 
Children with Disabilities Team.  

INFORMATION, ADVICE AND GUIDANCE 

In relation to Transitions/Preparation for Adulthood, there are mixed experiences from 
parents and carers in relation to their child/young person.  There are some positive 
examples where information and support has been forthcoming from the school and 
college and examples where parents and carers have received no information about the 
transition process and the offer/support available, including the pathway available after 
college and where meetings have been set up which haven’t been attended by 
caseworkers.   

“I feel school helped us very much with the transition from school to day centre. I felt I was 
given lots of help and support through various channels and it seemed a (sic) easy (ish) 

transition for my son too”. 

“There had been no communication regarding transition”. 

“At my child's transition, I was informed beforehand that the caseworker and someone 
from careers connect would be present and they where (sic) not”. 

The parents and carers experience and feedback on SENDIASS was very positive.  They 
value the service and the support given/received, however they did acknowledge that 
there is a shortage in staff available which results in it being difficult to contact the service 
and for the service to respond to queries.  

“Do a great job when you can get hold of them. SENDIASS are great”. 

“SENDIASS is excellent but very overworked so it’s impossible to get the help required”. 

“SENDIASS are very knowledgeable and helpful but seriously undermanned!!!”. 

The feedback on the Local Offer was focussed on being aware of the website, the 
information on the website being kept up to date and the information not being very easy 
to navigate. 

“The Local Offer is not very user friendly, and often does not make it easy to find the 
information you need. It is better than it was but there’s still a long way to go.” 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
12

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

“Not looked on the local offer for over 12 months as every time I tried looking for 
information, I just kept getting links that lead to more links….”. 

“The local offer should be explained and promoted more to parents”. 

SEND SYSTEM IMPROVING 

When asked whether parents and carers thought the SEND system was improving, there 
was some recognition that there was a lack of resources and cuts to services and a few 
examples that highlight their positive experiences, however in addition to the findings 
above, the general feeling from parents and carers is that they are being ‘let down’ and 
having to ‘fight’ for everything – for an EHCP, for an appointment, the right support and 
funding.  They feel that there are not enough funds available to deal with the current 
demands put on the teams and that there should be regular funding for their child/young 
person.  

Parents and carers report that they are having to constantly ‘chase’ and follow-up 
appointments and contact with services, including the EHCP process around delays, plans 
being updated and monitoring and reviews. 

“Austerity has had a devastating effect on all public services despite the best efforts and 
professionalism of those involved.  You are doing your best”. 

“….also feel it's battle fight just to get what's right help for your child in Sefton with Sen”. 
“We can live with the disabilities it is the constant fighting for services that affects the 

whole family physical, mental, emotional and social health”. 

“I truly believe everyone cares and tries to support but it appears overstretched in certain 
areas and to get what you require for your child in my experience you have to chase/follow 

up to be done”. 

A parent and carer also offered a suggestion to help improve the support for parents and 
carers: 

“Please consider having parent/council liaison officers to liaise with parents. It can be a 
lonely road to travel with a child with extra needs and the support of someone like this to 

navigate the system would be invaluable and make it less stressful and complicated”. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
13

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Complaints Analysis 

To validate the analysis from the consultation, given the relatively low proportion of 
respondents, we have considered the complaints raised to the Local Authority about 
SEND services over the last 12-month period. 

Generally, the themes emerging from complaints are consistent with those issues 
identified through the consultation exercise in both the quantitative and qualitative 
analysis, namely: 

• Communication and contact during and after the EHC assessment and planning
process

• Timeliness of EHC assessments and reviews

• Placement offer meeting/not meeting the needs of the child/young person or
parental preference

Complaint No. of 
complaints 

Outcome 

EHCP delay 6 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

4 

1 

1 

EHCP review delay 7 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

5 

1 

1 

EHCP provision 5 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

2 

1 

2 

LA school offer 4 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

3 

Staff attitude 3 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

1 

1 

Request for assessment 2 Upheld 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
14

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

2 

Request for extra 
funding 

2 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

1 

Incorrect EHCP content 1 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

Delay providing support 1 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

Request to repeat 
assessment 

1 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

Mobility car 1 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

Payments to nursery 1 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 1 

Elective home education 1 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

Data breach 1 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

1 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
15

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Total 36 Upheld 

Partly upheld 

Not upheld 

Withdrawn 

15 

7 

12 

2 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
16

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Annexe.1 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Health Questions 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
17

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very 

satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfied

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK

Not very 

well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and Language 

Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and Paediatrician? - Health 

and needs - CAMHS

Health - Needs Met - 

CAMHS 21 15 23 16 36 122 32.4 46.8
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and Language 

Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and Paediatrician? - Health 

and needs - Speech & Language Therapy

Health - Needs Met - 

Speech & Language 34 43 18 19 32 85 52.7 34.9
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and Language 

Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and Paediatrician? - Health 

and needs - Physio

Health - Needs Met - 

Physio 16 23 11 6 12 159 57.4 26.5
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and Language 

Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and Paediatrician? - Health 

and needs - Occupational Therapist

Health - Needs Met - 

Occupational 

Therapist 32 41 20 12 24 99 56.6 27.9
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and Language 

Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and Paediatrician? - Health 

and needs - Paediatrician

Health - Needs Met -

Paediatrician 29 31 35 27 55 59 33.9 46.3
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and Language 

Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and Paediatrician? - Health 

and needs - School Nursing

Health - Needs Met - 

School Nursing 35 32 24 15 23 106 51.9 29.5
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by HEALTH 

e.g. Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), Speech and Language 

Therapy (SALT), Physio, Occupational  Therapist (OT) and Paediatrician? - Health 

and needs - GP's

Health - Needs Met - 

GP 62 54 54 17 16 40 57.1 16.3
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of 

your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and satisfaction - 

CAMHS

Health - Monitoring 

& Assessment - 

CAMHS 20 19 0 19 39 136 40.2 59.8
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of 

your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and satisfaction - 

Speech and Language Therapy

Health - Monitoring 

& Assessment - 

Speech & Language 37 50 0 23 33 93 60.8 39.2
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of 

your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and satisfaction - 

Physio

Health - Monitoring 

& Assessment - 

Physio 20 26 0 9 11 164 69.7 30.3

Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of 

your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and satisfaction - 

Occupational Therapy

Health - Monitoring 

& Assessment - 

Occupational 

Therapy 37 44 0 21 29 107 61.8 38.2
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of 

your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and satisfaction - 

Paediatrician

Health - Monitoring 

& Assessment - 

Paediatrician 29 56 0 34 60 60 47.5 52.5
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of 

your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and satisfaction - 

School Nursing

Health - Monitoring 

& Assessment - 

School Nursing 41 45 0 15 19 117 71.7 28.3
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of 

your child or young person's needs by HEALTH?  - Education and satisfaction - 

GP's

Health - Monitoring 

& Assessment - GP 59 89 0 23 18 55 78.3 21.7
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - It is easy to contact 

the person I need to

Health - 

Communication - 

Ease 20 67 0 86 48 22 39.4 60.6

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Queries or requests 

for information are responded to in a timely manner

Health - 

Communication - 

Timeliness 19 63 0 82 45 30 39.2 60.8
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Written 

communication includes a named contact

Health - 

Communication - 

Named Contact 33 108 0 45 27 27 66.2 33.8
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Staff l isten to me in 

a calm and respectful manner

Health - 

Communication - 

Listened To 38 124 0 32 12 36 78.6 21.4

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - Language is 

positive and constructive

Health - 

Communication - 

Positive & 

Constructive 38 115 0 35 16 37 75.0 25.0

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - I receive the right 

level of information and advice about the assessment process

Health - 

Communication - 

Information & 

Advice 26 65 0 74 41 34 44.2 55.8

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within HEALTH? - Health and communication - I feel l istened to in 

the development and review of my child's/young person's plans

Health - 

Communication - 

Involvement in Plan 

development 30 82 0 61 33 34 54.4 45.6
How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - CAMHS

Health - Working 

Together - CAMHS 25 9 18 16 30 138 34.7 46.9

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - Speech & Language

Health - Working 

Together - Speech & 

Language 37 32 25 19 25 96 50.0 31.9
How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - Physio

Health - Working 

Together - Physio 18 20 13 7 14 161 52.8 29.2

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - Occupational therapist

Health - Working 

Together - 

Occupational 

Therapist 34 35 24 17 19 108 53.5 27.9

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - Paediatrician

Health - Working 

Together - 

Paediatrician 28 33 41 29 47 62 34.3 42.7

How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - School Nursing

Health - Working 

Together - School 

Nursing 36 33 22 11 21 119 56.1 26.0
How well do HEALTH professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - GP's

Health - Working 

Together - GP 49 60 49 18 18 51 56.2 18.6

Positive % Negative %Question SummaryQuestion

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
18

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
19

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Education Questions 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
20

Page 66

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfied

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK Not very well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are being met 

by EDUCATION? (for example, Nursery, School, College or Early Years Provider, e.g. 

Childminder/playgroup etc) - Needs and education Education - Needs Met 104 56 37 16 30 8 65.8 18.9
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of your 

child or young person's needs by EDUCATION?  - Education and satisfaction - 

Nursery/School/College

Education - Monitoring & 

Assessment Satisfaction - 

Nursery/School/College 77 79 0 25 29 12 74.3 25.7
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of your 

child or young person's needs by EDUCATION?  - Education and satisfaction - EHCP's 

Review Process

Education - Monitoring & 

Assessment Satisfaction - 

EHCP Review 52 72 0 23 38 29 67.0 33.0
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment of your 

child or young person's needs by EDUCATION?  - Education and satisfaction - Early 

Years Provider (Childminder, playgroup etc)

Education - Monitoring & 

Assessment Satisfaction - 

Early Years Provider 14 4 0 6 5 104 62.1 37.9
Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education 

and communication - It is easy to contact with the person I need to

Education - Edn Establishment - 

Communication - Ease 113 79 0 27 17 11 81.4 18.6
Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education 

and communication - Queries or requests for information are responded to in a 

timely manner

Education - Edn Establishment - 

Communication - Timeliness 90 85 0 25 31 13 75.8 24.2

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education 

and communication - Written communication includes a named contact

Education - Edn Establishment - 

Communication - Named 

Contact 98 98 0 18 17 14 84.8 15.2

Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education 

and communication - Staff l isten to me in a calm and respectful manner

Education - Edn Establishment - 

Communication - Listened To 126 87 0 6 13 12 91.8 8.2
Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education 

and communication - Language is positive and constructive

Education - Edn Establishment - 

Communication - Positive & 

Constructive 112 94 0 15 12 12 88.4 11.6
Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education 

and communication - I receive the right level of information and advice about the 

assessment process

Education - Edn Establishment - 

Communication - Information 

& Advice 89 72 0 39 30 16 70.0 30.0
Thinking about your communication with your child's/young person's 

NURSERY/SCHOOLS/COLLEGES/CHILDMINDER/

PLAY GROUP to what extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education 

and communication - I feel l istened to in the development and review of my 

child's/young person's plans

Education - Edn Establishment - 

Communication - Involvement 

in Plan Development 98 80 0 29 26 13 76.4 23.6
Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM to what 

extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and communication - 

It is easy to contact with the person I need to

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Ease 21 69 0 76 57 26 40.4 59.6

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM to what 

extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and communication - 

Queries or requests for information are responded to in a timely manner

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Timeliness 21 72 0 65 59 29 42.9 57.1
Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM to what 

extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and communication - 

Written communication includes a named contact

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Named 

Contact 33 106 0 45 33 28 64.1 35.9
Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM to what 

extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and communication - 

Listening is calm and respectful

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Listened To 32 132 0 27 19 36 78.1 21.9
Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM to what 

extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and communication - 

Language is positive and constructive

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Positive & 

Constructive 31 122 0 35 23 36 72.5 27.5

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM to what 

extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and communication - 

I receive the right level of information and advice about the assessment process

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Information 

& Advice 29 76 0 59 51 32 48.8 51.2

Thinking about your communication with the LOCAL AUTHORITY SEND TEAM to what 

extent do you agree with the following statements? - Education and communication - 

I feel l istened to in the development and review of my child's/young person's plans

Education - SEND Team - 

Communication - Involvement 

in Plan development 33 87 0 51 45 29 55.6 44.4
How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - School staff

Education - Working Together - 

School 123 41 25 18 27 12 70.1 19.2
How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - SENCOs

Education - Working Together - 

SENCO 89 36 31 14 29 33 62.8 21.6
How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - Local Authority SEND Team

Education - Working Together - 

LA SEND 35 39 47 31 42 34 38.1 37.6
How well do EDUCATION professionals work together to support your child or young 

person? - Education and working together - Early Years Provider (Childminder, 

playgroup etc)

Education - Working Together - 

Early Years 15 7 7 2 6 133 59.5 21.6

Question Question Summary

Positive 

%

Negative 

%

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
21

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
22

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Social Care Questions 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
23

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very 

satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfied

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK Not very well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Social Worker

Social Care - Needs Met - Social 

Worker 20 14 21 8 20 164 41.0 33.7

Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Early Help practitioner

Social Care - Needs Met - Early 

Help 10 6 7 1 10 198 47.1 32.4
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Aiming High

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Aiming High 31 25 20 8 22 130 52.8 28.3
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Springbrook

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Springbrook 8 2 2 2 7 209 47.6 42.9
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Adult Social Care (if 

over 18)

Social Care - Needs Met - Adult 

Social Care 4 6 3 3 7 204 43.5 43.5
Please tell  us how well you think your child or young person's needs are 

being met by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and needs - Children with 

Disabilities Team

Social Care - Needs Met - 

Disabilities Team 12 13 10 7 25 162 37.3 47.8
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

satisfaction - Social Worker

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Social Worker 18 28 0 14 22 160 56.1 43.9
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

satisfaction - Early Help practitioner

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Early Help 9 10 0 2 9 200 63.3 36.7
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

satisfaction - Aiming High

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Aiming High 30 41 0 7 21 132 71.7 28.3
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

satisfaction - Springbrook

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Springbrook 8 3 0 2 6 207 57.9 42.1
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

satisfaction - Adult Social Care (if over 18)

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Adult Social Care 5 7 0 3 5 203 60.0 40.0
Overall  how satisfied are you with the ongoing monitoring and assessment 

of your child or young person's needs by SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and 

satisfaction - Children with Disabilities Team

Social Care - Monitoring & 

Assessment - Disabilities Team 8 25 0 6 27 160 50.0 50.0
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and communication - It 

is easy to contact with the person I need to

Social Care - Communication - 

Ease 17 55 0 30 21 116 58.5 41.5

To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and communication - 

Queries or requests for information are responded to in a timely manner

Social Care - Communication - 

Timeliness 14 50 0 31 23 117 54.2 45.8
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and communication - 

Written communication includes a named contact

Social Care - Communication - 

Named Contact 20 59 0 18 13 122 71.8 28.2
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and communication - 

Staff l isten to me in a calm and respectful manner

Social Care - Communication - 

Listened To 29 63 0 7 12 123 82.9 17.1
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and communication - 

Language is positive and constructive

Social Care - Communication - 

Positive & Constructive 28 60 0 9 12 126 80.7 19.3
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and communication - I 

receive the right level of information and advice about the assessment 

process

Social Care - Communication - 

Information & Advice 21 43 0 27 24 118 55.7 44.3
To what extent do you agree with the following statements in connection to 

communication within SOCIAL CARE? - Social Care and communication - I 

feel l istened to in the development and review of my child's/young person's 

plans

Social Care - Communication - 

Involvement in Plan 

development 18 51 0 19 22 124 62.7 37.3

How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support your child 

or young person? - Social Care and working together - Social Worker

Social Care - Working Together - 

Social Worker 20 21 18 10 12 158 50.6 27.2
How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support your child 

or young person? - Social Care and working together - Early Help 

practitioner

Social Care - Working Together - 

Early Help 12 6 6 2 5 190 58.1 22.6
How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support your child 

or young person? - Social Care and working together - Aiming High

Social Care - Working Together - 

Aiming High 30 19 17 8 13 140 56.3 24.1
How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support your child 

or young person? - Social Care and working together - Springbrook

Social Care - Working Together - 

Springbrook 7 4 4 2 6 198 47.8 34.8
How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support your child 

or young person? - Social Care and working together - Adult Social Care (if 

over 18)

Social Care - Working Together - 

Adult Social Care 7 2 8 1 2 201 45.0 15.0
How well do SOCIAL CARE professionals work together to support your child 

or young person? - Social Care and working together - Children with 

Disabilities Team

Social Care - Working Together - 

Disabilities Team 7 10 11 11 13 167 32.7 46.2

Question Question Summary

Positive 

%

Negative 

%

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
24

Page 70

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
25

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Quantitative Analysis of Responses to Other Questions 

Strongly 

agree Agree Disagree

Strongly 

disagree

Not 

applicable

Very 

satisfied

Fairly 

satisfied

Not very 

satisfied

Very 

dissatisfied

Not 

applicable

Very well Quite well Just OK Not very well Very poorly

Not 

applicable

If your young person is aged 14 - 25 years old, please tell  us how satisfied 

you are of your experience with TRANSITION / PREPARING FOR ADULTHOOD  

- Satisfaction Transitions Other - Transitions 17 38 0 21 41 0 47.0 53.0
How satisfied are you with the following at meeting your information and 

support needs? - Satisfaction  Information and support - The Sefton SEND 

Local Offer Other - SEND Local Offer 16 27 0 28 32 123 41.7 58.3

How satisfied are you with the following at meeting your information and 

support needs? - Satisfaction  Information and support - Sefton SENDIASS Other - Sefton SENDIASS 27 30 0 19 24 124 57.0 43.0
How well do you find Education, Health and Social Care work together for 

your child or young person to help them reach their full  potential? - 

Working together

Other - Education, Health, 

Social Care - Working 

Together 32 43 46 44 60 17 33.3 46.2

Question Question Summary Positive % Negative %

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
26

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Other Graphs 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
27

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 7



Distribution: Final and approved. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 3.6 
28

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

SEND Short Survey 

Feedback from the 2020 Public 
Consultation Exercise on Special 
Educational Needs and/or Disabilities 
(SEND) Local Area Provision in Sefton 

Released: November 2020 

Jayne Vincent and Joshua Cross 
Commissioning Support & Business Intelligence Service 
Data, Insight, Business Intelligence, & Performance 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
1

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

1 

Document Control 

Issue/Amendment Record 

Version Date of Issue Reason for Issue 

V0.1 3rd November 2020 Internal draft for distribution and comment 

V1.1 17th November 2020 Final and approved 

Document Ownership 

Role Name/Title 

Authors Jayne Vincent 

Consultation and Engagement Lead 

Joshua Cross  

Management Trainee 

Tanya Wilcock 

Head of Communities 

Release 
Authority 

Wayne Leatherbarrow 

Service Manager - Performance & Intelligence 

Location 

Distribution 

• Elected Members

• Executive Director, Children’s Social Care and Education

• Chief Officer, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby
Clinical Commissioning Group

• Head of Education Excellence

• Head of Communities

• Head of Strategic Support

• NHS South Sefton CCG, NHS Southport and Formby CCG and NHS Liverpool CCG Designated Clinical
Officer (DCO)

• Members of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board

• Sefton Health and Wellbeing Board

• Parents and Carers

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
2

Page 76

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

2 

Contents 

Introduction and Consultation findings .............................................................................................. 3 

Question 1: Has your level of trust and confidence in the Sefton SEND Local Area Partnership to 
provide help and support increased? ............................................................................................. 6 

Question 2: Do you feel that the level of help and support that your child/young person with SEND 
receives meets their needs? .......................................................................................................... 6 

Question 3: Do you feel that you receive the right level of information and advice about the EHCP 
assessment process? .................................................................................................................... 6 

Question 4. Do you feel listened to in the development and review of your child’s/young person’s 
EHCP? .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Question 5: Do you feel that you are listened to and involved in shaping SEND services in 
Sefton? .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Question 6: In general, do you feel that communication regarding SEND services has improved? 7 

Question 7: In your opinion, are you seeing an improvement in the way health, education, social 
care and the SEN Casework team are working together to help and support you?........................ 8 

Qualitative feedback…………………………………………………………………………………………..8 
Conclusion……………………………………………………………………………………………………14 
Next steps…………………………………………………………………………………………………….14 
Annex 1 – 2019 Feedback Flyer……………………………………………………………………………15 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
3

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

3 

Introduction 

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the views and opinions of the parents 
and carers that responded to the public consultation on the SEND Short Survey held in 
September 2020. 

Background and context. 

In 2019, a baseline survey was co-designed with representatives of the Sefton Parent and 
Carer Forum and sent direct to over 1600 parent and carers who child/ren had an Education, 
Health and Care Plan (EHCP).  This survey provided partners with a baseline for Action 4 of 
the SEND Improvement Plan to monitor experience, involvement and satisfaction around the 
key areas of Education, Health, Social Care, information provision and on how the system is 
working together. This survey received 254 responses and a consultation report was 
presented to the SEND Continuous Improvement Board (SENDCIB) in January 2020 that 
outlined the feedback from parents and carers on what was going well and what could be 
improved in our local area.  The report was also shared with the Health & Wellbeing Board in 
March 2020. 

The SENDCIB agreed that the survey should be conducted annually, with a mid-year shorter 
survey to capture the parent and carer opinion of the local area provision and to track the 
perception of the impact of the reforms identified in the SEND Improvement Action Plan.   The 
SEND Co-production, Communication and Engagement Sub-Group would oversee both the 
short survey and the annual in-depth survey.  

A Task & Finish Group, including a representative of the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum 
designed the short survey to capture feedback on the following six areas: 

• Increased level of trust and confidence of parents and carers in the local area to
provide support

• Parents, carers and young people rate the level of help and support children and young
people with SEND receive to meet their needs

• Parents, carers and young people rate the level of information and advice available
about the assessment process to support children and young people with SEND

• Parents and carers feel that they can influence change to service delivery

• Parents and carers feel that they are listened to in the development and review of
EHCPs (Collected Via Survey)

• Parents, carers and young people believe that communication has improved

This would provide direct indication of the change in customer satisfaction correlated to the 
improvement objects of the SEND Improvement Action Plan.  

In addition to the six areas above, there was also a question included in the survey to see if 
parents and carers are seeing an improvement in the way health, education, social care and 
the SEN Casework team are working together to help and support them and also a free-text 
question, where parents and carers could provide more detailed information about their 
experience. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
4

Page 78

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

4 

The baseline survey was conducted between 18 November and 18th December 2019 and the 
original intention was for the mid-year shorter survey to take place in June 2020. However 
due to the COVID 19 pandemic, it was agreed by the SENDCIB in June 2020 to change the 
dates for conducting the shorter parent/carer survey from June to September 2020, and to 
move the main survey from December 2020 to February 2021  When this decision was taken 
in June it was thought that we would be in more of a ‘recovery’ phase of the pandemic in 
September. However, following a second wave of the pandemic there has been continued 
service pressures resulting from the prolonged COVID response and families have 
experienced school closures and were preparing for their child/ren returning to a very different 
school environment.  

It is important to note that since the original baseline survey was conducted in December 
2019, much of this past year has been impacted by Covid-19. This has resulted in continuing 
pressures on schools, health services and changes to face to face work with children and 
young people to inform assessments. Rather than being in a post Covid recovery phase in 
September like we anticipated at the June board meeting, we instead moved into wave two 
of the pandemic with increasing infection rates and ongoing disruption to pre-Covid normality. 

Despite this second wave of the virus, the SENDCIB decided to continue with the survey as 
planned, particularly as the survey was short and would take a few minutes to complete and 
it was felt that it was important to hear the feedback from parents and carers at this 
unprecedented time. It is important to try and understand the impact Covid has had on the 
experiences of parents and carers and the results of this survey need to be understood in 
this context. 

Consultation methodology 

It was agreed that the short survey would be an online open survey on the Council’s online 
consultation hub and that the survey and a feedback flyer (appendix 1) would also be 
promoted via the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum membership, and through a network of 
distributors including: 

• All school’s admin teams and all school’s Headteachers for SENCO’s

• SEND Co-production, Communication and Engagement Sub-Group partner
members

• Every Child Matters Forum Coordinator

• Aiming High Coordinator

• Head of Education Excellence (for School’s newsletter)

• Healthwatch Sefton (for website)

• NHS South Sefton and NHS Southport & Formby CCG (for website)

• Sefton Council social media

• Promoted on the Local Offer.

The survey was available for completion from the 14th September – 2nd October, with a 
two-week extension to the 16th October 2020. 

As mentioned above the short survey focused on seven key areas and below is a summary 
of the quantitative and qualitative analysis for each of these areas.  The questions had a 
Yes or No response as opposed to a sliding scale response. Quantitative analysis means, 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
5

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

5 

to measure by quantity rather than quality (experiences/feelings). When we do quantitative 
analysis, we are exploring facts, measures, numbers, and percentages.  For the analysis, 
we have rounded-up the percentages.  There were 91 free text comments provided, which 
in the main focused on ‘levels of help and support’ and ‘communication’ All the comments 
have been analysed and key themes have been included in the response below. 

Consultation findings

There are 1939 Sefton pupils with an EHCP.  The survey was completed by 243 
respondents which is a 13% response rate.  It is not known if the respondents had 
completed the 2019 survey or whether they had been receiving a service for a while or 
whether they were new to the service since the last survey was conducted. It is also not 
known if the survey was completed by families outside of the ‘system’, who are not currently 
receiving a service.  In hindsight it may have been useful to ask this question and so for 
future surveys we will include this so we can accurately corelate parent/carer experience to 
a timeframe of engagement with services.   

In summary the consultation headlines are: 

• Trust and confidence in the Sefton SEND Local Area to provide help and support is
increasing, despite the challenges of COVID-19

• Whilst there is recognition that improvements are being made in the Sefton local
area, with approximately half of those responding to this survey positively, there are
however 52% of the parents and carers who responded to this survey still unhappy
with the level of service.  It would appear from the feedback that the majority of those
dissatisfied may have been in the ‘system’ for an extended period

• In the first consultation in 2019, 55% of respondents were satisfied that they received
the right level of information.  It would appear in the interim period, there has been
little change with 54% affirming that they receive the right level of information
throughout the EHCP assessment process

• Parents and carers are reporting an improvement in the way health, education, social
care and the SEN Casework team are working together to help and support them

• Education and schools stand out for praise from respondents, particularly in relation
to regular contact and information, and in understanding a child’s specific needs

• There is an increase in the number of parents and carers who feel that they are
listened to in the development and review of their child/young person’s EHCP

• Whilst improvements are being made, there are areas parents and carers feel need
further attention, namely;

- Improved communication and information from all parts of the SEND system
- Waiting times for both written reports and appointments with educational

psychologists and Speech & Language Therapists and health professionals
- Waiting times for annual EHCP reviews

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
6

Page 80

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

6 

- Parents and carers feeling listened to and involved in shaping the wider SEND
services

- Continue the work done to ensure services are working together to help improve
services and outcomes for children and young people.

Quantitative Feedback 

Question 1: Has your level of trust and confidence in the Sefton SEND Local Area 
Partnership to provide help and support increased?   

There were 240 responses to this question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 109 44.86% 

No 131 53.91% 

Not Answered 3 1.23% 

54% of respondents indicated that their level of trust and confidence hasn’t increased in 
relation to the Sefton SEND Local Area Partnership in relation to providing help and 
support, compared to 45% who indicated that trust and confidence has increased. When 
comparing this to the 2019 survey, however, there has been a 6.5% increase, rising from 
38.5%. 

Question 2: Do you feel that the level of help and support that your child/young 
person with SEND receives meets their needs?  

There were 241 responses to this question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 115 47.33% 

No 126 51.85% 

Not Answered 2 0.82% 

52% of respondents feel that the level of help and support their child receives doesn’t meet 
their needs, whilst 48% do. This is a decrease of 10% from the 2019 survey where 58% of 
parents and carers who completed the survey said their child/young person’s needs were 
being met. 

Question 3: Do you feel that you receive the right level of information and advice 
about the EHCP assessment process?   

There were 241 responses to this question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 130 53.50% 

No 111 45.68% 

Not Answered 2 0.82% 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
7

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

7 

Just over half of the respondents (54%) feel that they receive the right level of information 
and advice about the EHCP assessment process whilst 46% feel that this is not the case.  
This is a slight decrease of 1% compared to the 2019 survey, where 55% felt they were 
receiving the right level of information and advice. 

Question 4. Do you feel listened to in the development and review of your 
child’s/young person’s EHCP?   

There were 242 responses to this question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 155 63.79% 

No 87 35.80% 

Not Answered 1 0.41% 

Nearly two-thirds (64%) of respondents indicated that they feel listened to in the 
development and review of their child/young person’s EHCP, compared to 36% who don’t 
feel listened to.  This is a slight increase of 2% from the 2019 survey. 

Question 5: Do you feel that you are listened to and involved in shaping SEND 
services in Sefton?   

There were 242 responses to this question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 97 39.92% 

No 145 59.67% 

Not Answered 1 0.41% 

60% of respondents said that they don’t feel listened to and involved in shaping SEND 
services in Sefton and 40% of respondents said that they do.  This is a decrease of 22% 
from the 2019 survey. 

Question 6: In general, do you feel that communication regarding SEND services has 
improved?  

There were 240 responses to this question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 99 40.74% 

No 141 58.02% 

Not Answered 3 1.23% 

58% of respondents feel that in general that the communication regarding SEND services 
hasn’t improved, compared to 41% that does feel it has improved.  This is a decrease of 
25% from the 2019 survey, where 66% felt that communication had improved. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
8

Page 82

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

8 

Question 7: In your opinion, are you seeing an improvement in the way health, 
education, social care and the SEN Casework team are working together to help 
and support you?  

There were 241 responses to this question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 103 42.39% 

No 138 56.79% 

Not Answered 2 0.82% 

57% of respondents indicated that they are not seeing an improvement in the way that 
services are working together to help and support them, whilst 42% do think there is an 
improvement.  This, however, is a 9% improvement on the 2019 survey, where 33% were 
happy with the way services were working together. 

Qualitative Feedback 

Ninety-one written comments were received within the free text box and these have been 
grouped into themes. There was a mix of positive and negative feedback as outlined below: 

Communication with the SEN Team 

There were some respondents that were pleased with the level of support that they have 
received.  

“I think the team does a good job.  I know it’s not always perfect, but the will is there.” 

“I am very happy with the support I am getting - thank you” 

“We are really happy with the support from the inclusion officer Sara Chattun. She has been 
so supportive and has really tried to understand our daughter’s needs. We are so grateful 
she has been given the chance to continue with her education in a way she can actually 

access. This has given us all hope. Thank you” 

“Our EHCP caseworker has changed. However, our new contact was happy for me to ring 
and discuss my daughter and any concerns I have. We are reviewing options to have her 

moved as school cannot meet her educational needs, but they have tried their best with the 
resources available.” 

“Really nice person did my son's EHCP and changed it straight away when I pointed out a 
mistake - easy to get hold of her”. 

“This is my first experience of SEND and an EHCP. Initially the process was awful with case 
worker not getting back to me and lengthy delays until I had to complain. However, since 

then it has improved dramatically and I have felt listened to, involved and valued as a 
contributor to the EHCP” 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
9

Page 83

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

9 

The importance of the role played by caseworkers was evident from the comments 
received. For some respondents this relationship was positive and resulted in a sense that 
they had access to the right information and advice. 

“I haven't had much experience with the majority of this. His case worker was brilliant 
answering questions I had with his last EHCP, in honesty there was 1 or 2 questions she 

couldn't answer, and we will go thru the process again when it arises.” 

“Really nice person did my son's EHCP and changed it straight away when I pointed out a 
mistake easy to get hold of her” 

For others a lack of contact with a caseworker, an inexperienced caseworker and staff 
changes resulted in parents/carers feeling frustrated and let down. 

"Case worker changed without notification were on to our 4th one. Some have little or no 
experience of SEN, which is extremely frustrating.” 

For many, the major issue with the EHCP process relates to the length of time taken for an 
assessment, the lack of responses or information received regarding the process, and the 
length of time it takes for the EHCP to be reviewed. 

“Haven’t received any feedback in regards to EHCP services etc.” 

“EHCP reviews are still not sorted. 

“I contacted the person I thought was my daughter's caseworker during lockdown to try and 
get some advice to be proactive for September as she will be in a transition year.  This was 

by email. The caseworker said I had a new caseworker.  Then said they didn't know who 
would be our caseworker in September.  I asked for details of the high school transition 

process but received no further replies” 

For some respondents there is still a lack of trust which seems to stem from their 
experiences over a long period of engagement with SEND services. 

“Before Covid (2years ago) the communication within the department was a disgrace. No 
matter how many messages left on landline extensions no one would ever get back to you.  

I’m not talking about once or twice, this was constantly. I only ever got to speak with a 
person if the phone was answered”. 

The initial 20-week bit may be improved but that doesn’t help you if you’ve had an EHCP 
that hasn’t been updated for 5 years” 

Others acknowledged that some improvements have been made but there is still more that 
can be done to improve the level of support. 

“I do think that improvements have been made. However, there is still a massive shortage 
of practical based/rest-bite services which are vital. Vital in being able to sustain long term 

support for our children as carers.” 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
10

Page 84

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

10 

“I can see that some improvements have been made, however, I feel there is still a very 
long way to go before there is a much greater improvement in the way the whole sen dept 

works.” 

Education and schools 

Several respondents were highly complementary of the role of their child’s school. 

“School have been amazing - helping me with my son's education, behaviour and EHCP.” 

"I’m very happy with the way school deal with my son’s needs”. 
“We receive no support, the only information I receive about my daughters EHCP is from 

school” 

“My daughter has had no support outside her own teacher.  Her barriers to learning are still 
undiscovered. - we still do not know what her needs are, despite a consultant from Alder 

Hey writing to school to say she needed to be seen by a EP. There is no contact from 
Sefton Council at all, and school contact in minimal.” 

“Thank you for Samantha Warwick at Formby High. 
Her support and understanding has been life changing for us. 

She really understands our son’s additional needs and never dismissed him as a ‘naughty 
kid’. We just can’t thank her enough.” 

“I do not receive any support at all for my son. The only contact we have had this year is 
from the school SENCO, other than to be discharged from services we cannot currently 

access as we have not accessed them. Ludicrous”. 

“My son's school is amazing, and they are very informative in every way.” 

Other respondents highlighted issues with some schools: 

“I have asked for my child to be assessed in Christ church primary school over 8 months 
ago and still waiting” 

“Still feels very much parents are out on a limb, you have to go looking for information to get 
help. SEND within schools don’t necessarily speak with form tutor when child starts new 

year, this aggravates an already fraught time. Mainstream teachers have limited knowledge 
of special needs, there needs to be additional training for teachers not just SEND. The 

annual developmental report that I get from our SEND is laughable so generic and could be 
copied and pasted from another. No clear plans. Disappointed to say the least “ 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
11

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

11 

Health services 

There were fewer bespoke comments made about health services other than below 
outlining some frustrations regarding communication. There were a few Covid related 
comments in relation to health services in the Covid section below. 

“……External services such as SALT and CAHMS have been very poor with 
communication. I emailed CAHMS in desperation approximately 3 weeks ago and haven’t 

heard a thing." 

“Also CAHMS need to more accessible to ASD/ADHD children as both of this adversely 
affect children's mental health and self-esteem.” 

“My child has not had an appointment with her paediatrician in about 3 years. We’ve just 
been left to get on with it.” 

Information and Advice 

The accessibility of information and advice, and where to find this, was also highlighted as a 
problem. This was an area that received a high level of comments.  There are mixed 
experiences from parents and carers about information and communication.  However, 
most comments received in relation to communication refer to the lack of information and 
communication from all parts of the system – education and educational psychology, health 
services, SEN support and social care. 

Parents and carers report that their calls and emails are unanswered, that there is a delay 
in sending out forms and reports and that they are not kept informed about their child’s 
progress, timescales, appointments and discharge from health services. 

“There has been a delay in sending out repeat forms for me to pass to the school for 
completion, which I now need to chase up”. 

“No information on how to work with this service which my son would benefit from - might 
be ok when you are in the service but no idea how to access it.” 

“I have asked for help with resources and advice on where I can go for help form my sons 
SEN provider within the school and I have received either no information or 'I don’t know' 

I don't feel she proves any support or has any interest in providing support.” 

There are some parents and carers reporting that they are not being listened to by SEN 
professionals – that their views, opinions and requests are disregarded and ignored, which 
contributes to feelings of frustration, ‘being a nuisance’ and being the one to blame. 

“Need to listen to parents more.  As a parent of a child with SEN I’ve at times felt 
frustrated”. 

“Does not listen to parents and continuously puts down parent views and ignores requests”. 

“I do not feel listened to at all regarding the best interests of my child, multiple SEN 
professionals disregarded my opinion and were condescending”. 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
12

Page 86

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

12 

Parent /Carer suggestions on further improvements 

There have been some suggestions from parents and carers on how information and 
communication can be improved: 

“It would be helpful to have a list of caseworkers against what schools they work with and 
their contact details (tel / email) on the local offer or given out as an email to all parents and 
carers of children with send. It would also be helpful for the SEN Managers to be listed too. 

A good idea would be the chain of command, including admin officers so parents can 
actually get through to somebody”. 

“It would be SO helpful if caseworkers actually contacted families when they take children 
into their caseload.  A friendly introduction would be so helpful.  Rather than us as parents 

or the school trying to contact Sefton to find out.  Also, an overview of how the system 
works for parents would be really helpful too” 

There has been a suggestion from a parent and carer about how involving parents and 
carers can be improved: 

“Have some parents working in a professional capacity with your team - take the plunge 
and believe that people who are on the front line with children and have walked the walked 
are often best qualified to speak with families. Even a couple of parent liaison officers to act 

as a conduit between families and your department would work wonders. It would help 
families to navigate their way through what is a hugely complex and daunting process at a 
time when they are normally at their most vulnerable and need help the most. Ps. Can I be 

considered for the role please?!” 

Impact of Covid 

COVID-19 does seem to have had an impact on the reported levels of service. Some 
parents and carers acknowledge that some services have stopped or have been reduced 
because of COVID and how parents and carers have been able to engage with services as 
services have had to adapt how they provide information to and contact with families. A few 
parents and carers report that during the lockdown because of COVID, they have 
experienced limited contact and information and have found it hard to develop relationships 
and for their child/young person to continue to receive the support they need. 

“I think this is a hard survey to complete because of the COVID situation. My child needs 
are being met but I also feel that I am unable to express things face to face which would 

help allot rather than an email etc... but apart from that am very happy” 

“Covid has meant that no-one can come out and see my son. He has a high level of 
disengagement and I can’t see that changing until someone is able to start to develop a 

relationship with him”. 

“We moved to Sefton in December so with COVID have had limited time at school. 
However, we received no information during lockdown, support or information.  I am 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
13

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

13 

unaware of the EHP and haven’t been approached about what and how to start this 
process. I am aware of it only through my own enquires” 

“The OT input from Southport stoops with COVID, but with no communication as to when 
this may re start or an alternative format of review.” 

“In my opinion it appears to have got worse, children are getting discharged from services, 
there is nowhere to get help or support from. I think it’s worse, if you don’t have an EHCP 
you really are on your own and even with one it isn’t being followed up, perhaps Covid has 

an impact on why things seem worse”. 

“During COVID 19 pandemic and the national lockdown, we have experienced some hard 
times with our son XXX. We believe that XXX requires some additional therapies like 
behavioral or SLT, but we also understand none of it is possible these days. We also 
appreciate that we are not the only family facing such difficulties as we are all in it together. 
We are hoping that we will all get thru these hard times pretty quick and looking forward to 
improve XXX’s behavior and attitude with some extra help from SEND Sefton, wherever 
possible”. 

Conclusion 

This survey was completed by 243 respondents. We know that there are many more 
parents and carers whose child/ren have an EHCP plan.  We will continue to listen and 
engage with families and look at different ways we can gather their feedback.  

As we move into another lockdown, we will take on board the comments received in this 
report to improve our response and contact with families in this challenging situation.  

Next steps 

1. Continue to improve communication and information from all parts of the SEND system

• In terms of communication with parents and carers there is a wealth of information
contained within the Local Offer. We should ensure that all parents are sign posted
to the Local Offer as the first point of information on all things SEND

• We should share more widely the SENDIASS information to ensure parents and
carers have access to professional advice and guidance on process

2. Improve waiting times for both written reports and appointments with educational
psychologists and Speech & Language Therapists and health professionals

• Ensure services communicate clearly on waiting times and update parents and
carers when waiting times have moved

3. Ensure parents and carers feel listened to and ensure they are involved in shaping the
wider SEND services

• This year parents and carers have been central to reviewing changes to EHCP
paperwork, which goes live in November 2020, so the impact and effect of these
changes will not be felt until sometime next year.

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
14

Page 88

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

14 

• They have also been central to the production of the Guidance for children with
additional needs and disabilities and the Preparing for Adulthood Guidance. Both of
which have just been completed and so documents will go live on the website and
wider impact may not be felt until next year.

• Parents and carers where also fully involved in the ASD pathway and the interim
measures put in place to address waiting times.

• More generally and in terms of everyday communication all new EHCP assessments
are allocated a casework officer who shares their contact details at an initial
introductory meeting.

• Continue to prioritise codesign and coproduction at every opportunity

4. Continue the work done to ensure services are working together to help improve
services and outcomes for children and young people.

• SEND CIB continues to hold services to account. Operationally services are meeting
regularly and engaging through the sub groups of the SENDCIB.

5. Gathering of views from a wider cohort of parents and carers. Each service to survey
parents and carers about their specific area and feedback from that to be pulled
together into a report reflecting wider feedback. Embed into system and practice service
user feedback.

5. Establish some focus groups to test further the feedback received and to gain further
insight on what more can be done to improve parent/carer experience.

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
15

Page 89

Agenda Item 7



Distribution: Final and approved 

15 

Annex 1: 2019 survey feedback flyer 

Agenda Item 7 Para. 4.6 
16

Page 90

Agenda Item 7



Feedback
SEND system and 
services 
March 2021

What families told us about SEND system 
and services following two parent/carer 
surveys in 2019 and 2020. 

You Said: “The SEND support pathway isn't clear to us” 
• We don't feel aware of the parts of the process or what happens next

• We don’t know about the services offered and ways to access support is unclear

• Signposting from professionals about other services could be better

• We are keen to build on our connections with other families through groups

What we have done 

Supported Sefton Parent Carer Forum (SPCF) to enable them to help families to build their own 
connections with regular drop-in sessions planned. 

Strengthened the SEND Casework team with £400k additional investment into the service 

Reviewed the role and job description and appointed a SEND Service Manager 

Strengthened SENDIASS through additional funding from Council and CCG and additional staffing to 
support families to navigate complex services 

Preparing for Adulthood (PfA) workshops delivered and feedback fed into the Preparing for 
Adulthood Guide which has been co-produced with parents, carers and young people. 

Young Person’s  Schools Get Talking sessions have been developed to ensure the voice of young 
person is heard. 

Local Offer website has been refreshed and all changes have been co-produced with parents, carers 
and young people 

Agenda Item 7a 
1

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



1

Mapped the current universal offer of services available to families and created a Resource Pack 

Published a Guidance document for Children with Additional Needs and Disabilities 

Reviewed the Aiming High Offer to identify gaps and put in place a refreshed offer 

Coproduced and refreshed the EHCP paperwork and put in place introductory meetings with 
parents, carers and young people to explain clearly the process 

Trained Early Help staff to understand the EHCP and SEN pathways so they can better support 
parents, carers and young people. 

What we are going to do 

• Continue to listen to families, and work with them to shape services

• Support SPCF to access their own premises

• Coproduce a young persons and parents/carers leaflet explaining the EHCP process

You Said: “Diagnosis and timescales to support takes too long” 
• Support needs to be available/accessible prior to a diagnosis

• We have long waits for appointments

• We need support in place before a diagnosis is made

What we have done 

Understanding of the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) role which has been shared more widely 
and a dedicated e-mail address means that families are now able to contact the DCO directly 

Implemented a new appointment system at Alder Hey which is more user friendly and has led to 
fewer cancellations 

Improvements to the prescribing system at Alder Hey to make it easier for families to re-order 
medications. 

Alder Hey EHCP team are now contacting parents/carers to discuss updated advice to be included 
in EHCP Annual Reviews  

Liverpool and Sefton pathway now is NICE compliant and have merged to become one Alderhey 
pathway to ensure equity across our community for ASD & ADHD 

ASD letters and reports to be used in the pathway are being co-produced with parent / carers. 

6th Review of ASD and ADHD referral process and form being undertaken with parents / carers and 
local schools to ensure co-production 

Leaflet to be given to parents at start of pathway process to be reviewed and co-produced with 
parents / carers. ASD Post Diagnostic Feedback Booklet & Advisory Session Booklet have already 
been done and approved Jan 2021 

ASD Post diagnostic pathway review with stakeholders to reduce duplication 

Agenda Item 7a 
2

Page 92

Agenda Item 7



2

Liverpool & Sefton  Parent & Carer Forums representatives are key members of the ASD & ADHD 
improvement programme. 

Published a SEN Universal Services Resource Pack which was shared widely and is on the Sefton 
Directory and Local Offer. 

Listened to parents and carers concerns about waiting times and put in place targets 

What we are going to do 

• ADHD & ASD Children and Young People pathway/service feedback sessions to be arranged for
April/May 2021

• Continue to have direct input from the parent / carer forum to help us continually improve the
pathway

• Consult on and publish and All Age Autism Strategy and Action Plan

You Said: “We feel that mainstream schools are not always 
inclusive” 

• We don’t always feel supported by the school particularly where the child/young person has
challenging behaviour

• The SENCO is the only person in the school where issues can be managed often bypassing other
teachers

• We feel like we have to fight for our children to receive the right support in their school/setting

What we have done 

Started to develop an Education Strategy with Inclusion as one of its key priorities 

Inclusion task group established reporting into the SEN School Forum 

Strengthened our SENDIASS service through additional staffing and funding so they can better 
support parents and carers 

Ensured SEND services attend the SENCO Forum to share good practice, offer peer support and 
raise concerns. 

Reviewed our Special Schools Outreach Service to support our mainstream schools 

Ensured that the Fair Access Panel looked at alternative options for families  

Strengthened SEN Early Years support to mainstream nurseries to support the transition to primary 
school. 

Reviewed our Resourced Provision to ensure we have sufficient places to meet the needs of our 
children. 

Developed a Children’s Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) support service for schools 

Agenda Item 7a 
3

Page 93

Agenda Item 7



3

Co-produced a Preparing for Adulthood Guide 

Reviewed and refreshed the Graduated Response guidance 

Inclusion team met with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum and SENDIASS to share the advice 
being delivered to schools by the Inclusion Team on remote learning for SEND. This includes coffee 
mornings being offered for the parents/carers of children and young people with Autism Social and 
Communication to support them during lockdown. 

Put in place an Early Help Link Worker for all schools to help them to initiate the Early Help 
assessment 

What are we going to do 

• Service Manager for Inclusion to be appointed.

• Graduated teaching response guidance documents to be in easy read version which will be co-
produced with young people for young people.

• Further development of Resource Provision in school

• Support school staff with further skills and training

• Improve the universal offer supporting emotional wellbeing through quality first teaching for all
children.

• Review the model of funding for schools.

• We will do further work with schools and settings to ensure welcoming and inclusive practice as
well as further developing our advice and guidance for SEN information

You Said: “Coordination and communication between 
professionals could be improved” 

• Better communication between all services and agencies involved is needed

• Some services are providing conflicting advice

• Professionals don’t always get back to us and keep us updated

• We are often passed between agencies

What we have done 

Shared this feedback with our teams and directed professionals to offer a person-centred approach 
when communicating with parents and carers 

Put in place regular bi-monthly Keep in Touch meetings with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum 
and Operational leads  

Strengthened strategic communication with Council by the Head of Communities and with Health 
by the Designated Clinical Officer (DCO) 

Co-production sub group of the SEND Continuous Improvement Board established to ensure 
coordination across the system 

Agenda Item 7a 
4

Page 94

Agenda Item 7



4

Established a SEND Health Steering Group to ensure coordination of health advices 

EHCP training programme delivered by NASEN to all health and council staff 

A multi agency quality assurance process has been put in place involving all key services and audit 
outcomes fed back through service leads 

Changes made to the EHCP assessment process that includes initial meeting with parents and 
carers and a joint outcomes meeting as well. 

All new EHCP parents/carers are contacted to complete a service user feedback survey 

Casework Officers now share mobile phone numbers when they first contact families which has 
improved communication 

Annual parent /carer survey to capture ongoing issues 

What we are going to do 

• Ensure that we continue to update information on the Local Offer

• Embed service user feedback as standard practice within all services

You Said: “The short breaks offer is not easy to understand or 
access” 

• We are not aware of the short breaks offer and what we are entitled to

• Improvements are needed to make mainstream activities inclusive

• We feel that staff aren't suitably trained to understand and support the child's needs

What we have done 

We have established reviews of both the Aiming High short breaks offer and the Springbrook 
overnight respite offer 

We have established a task group around Direct Payments 

We have mapped the current universal offer of services available to families and created a 
Resource Pack 

We have co-produced a refresh of the Local Offer so it is easier to find out the information on 
activities and short breaks 

We have widened access to Public Health Budgets and co-produced leaflets and information 

What we are going to do 

• We are redesigning the short breaks offer in line with consultation feedback

• We will consult on and implement an All Age Autism Strategy for the borough

Agenda Item 7a 
5

Page 95

Agenda Item 7



5

• We will introduce Autism training for all providers of universal mainstream services

• We will work with the voluntary sector to ensure gaps in provision can be met

Agenda Item 7a 
6

Page 96

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7a 
7

Page 97

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on Friday 12th February 2021
	5 LCR - Race Equality Engagement Plan
	6 Feedback & Evaluation Report - Southport Golf Survey
	Item 6a SGL Consultation Summary Outcome

	7 Update Report - SEND
	Item 7. Para 3.6 SEND Parent and Carer Survey 2019 Report v1
	Item 7. Para 4.6 SEND Parent and Carer Short Survey 2020 Report v1 Final and Approved
	Item 7a SEND Feedback flyer 2021 [Accessible]
	What families told us about SEND system and services following two parent/carer surveys in 2019 and 2020.
	You Said: “The SEND support pathway isn't clear to us”
	What we have done
	What we are going to do

	You Said: “Diagnosis and timescales to support takes too long”
	What we have done
	What we are going to do

	You Said: “We feel that mainstream schools are not always inclusive”
	What we have done
	What are we going to do

	You Said: “Coordination and communication between professionals could be improved”
	What we have done
	What we are going to do

	You Said: “The short breaks offer is not easy to understand or access”
	What we are going to do







